Offering Circular dated 10 November 2021

IBERDROLA FINANZAS, S.A.U.
(Incorporated with limited liability in the Kingdom of Spain)

€750,000,000 6 Year Non-Call Undated Deeply Subordinated Reset Rate Guaranteed Securities

unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed on a subordinated basis by

IBERDROLA, S.A.

(incorporated with limited liability in the Kingdom of Spain)

Issue Price 100 per cent.
The €750,000,000 6 Year Non-Call Undated Deeply Subordinated Reset Rate Guaranteed Securities (the “Securities”) are issued by Iberdrola Finanzas, S.A.U. (the “Issuer” or “Iberdrola
Finanzas™) and unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed on a subordinated basis by Iberdrola, S.A. (the “Guarantee”, and the “Guarantor” or “Iberdrola”, respectively).

The Securities will bear interest on their principal amount (i) from (and including) the Issue Date to (but excluding) the First Reset Date at a rate of 1.575 per cent. per annum; and (ii) from (and
including) the First Reset Date (as defined in the section headed “Terms and Conditions of the Securities” (the “Conditions™)), at, in respect of each Reset Period, the relevant 5 year Swap Rate
plus: (A) in respect of the Reset Period commencing on the First Reset Date to (but excluding) the First Step-up Date (as defined in the Conditions), 1.676 per cent. per annum; (B) in respect of
the Reset Periods commencing on the First Step-up Date to (but excluding) the Second Step-up Date (as defined in the Conditions), 1.926 per cent. per annum; and (C) in respect of any other
Reset Period from and including the Second Step-up Date, 2.676 per cent. per annum, all as determined by the Agent Bank (subject to the operation of Condition 4(d)). Interest will be payable
annually in arrear on each Interest Payment Date (as defined in the Conditions), commencing on 16 November 2022. If the Issuer does not elect to redeem the Securities in accordance with
Condition 6(f) following the occurrence of a Change of Control Event (as defined in the Conditions), the then Prevailing Interest Rate (as defined in the Conditions), and each subsequent Prevailing
Interest Rate otherwise determined in accordance with the Conditions, on the Securities shall be increased by 5 per cent. per annum with effect from (and including) the date on which the Change
of Control Event occurred. See Condition 4(h) (Step-up after Change of Control Event).

The Issuer may, at its sole discretion, elect to defer (in whole or in part) any payment of interest on the Securities, subject to limited exceptions, as more particularly described in Condition 5
(Optional Interest Deferral). Any amounts so deferred, together with further interest accrued thereon (at the Prevailing Interest Rate applicable from time to time), shall constitute Arrears of
Interest (as defined in the Conditions). The Issuer may pay outstanding Arrears of Interest, in whole or in part, at any time in accordance with the Conditions. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Issuer shall pay any outstanding Arrears of Interest in whole, but not in part, on the first occurring Mandatory Settlement Date following the Interest Payment Date on which any outstanding
Arrears of Interest was first deferred, all as more particularly described in Condition 5(c) (Mandatory Settlement of Arrears of Interest).

The Securities will be undated securities in respect of which there is no specific maturity date and shall be redeemable (at the option of the Issuer) in whole, but not in part, on any date during the
period commencing on (and including) 16 August 2027 and ending on (and including) the First Reset Date and on any Interest Payment Date thereafter, at their principal amount together with any
accrued and unpaid interest up to (but excluding) the Redemption Date (as defined in the Conditions) and any outstanding Arrears of Interest. The Issuer furthermore has the right to redeem the
Securities (in whole but not in part), at any time (other than during the Relevant Period or upon any subsequent Interest Payment Date) at the Make-whole Redemption Amount (as more particularly
described in Condition 6). In addition, upon the occurrence of an Accounting Event, a Capital Event, a Change of Control Event, a Tax Event, a Withholding Tax Event or a Substantial Purchase
Event (each such term as defined in the Conditions), the Securities will be redeemable (at the option of the Issuer) in whole, but not in part, at the prices set out, and as more particularly described,
in Condition 6 (Redemption and Purchase).

The Securities will constitute direct, unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Issuer and will at all times rank pari passu and without any preference among themselves, as more particularly
described in Condition 2 (Status and Subordination of the Securities and Coupons). The payment obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee will constitute direct, unsecured and subordinated
obligations of the Guarantor and will at all times rank pari passu and without any preference among themselves. In the event of the Guarantor being declared in insolvency under Spanish insolvency
law, the rights and claims of Holders (as defined in the Conditions) against the Guarantor in respect of or arising under the Guarantee will rank, as against the other obligations of the Guarantor,
in the manner more particularly described in Condition 3 (Guarantee, Status and Subordination of the Guarantee).

Payments in respect of the Securities will be made without withholding or deduction for, or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever
nature of the Kingdom of Spain, unless such withholding or deduction is required by law. In the event that any such withholding or deduction is made, additional amounts will be payable by the
Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor, subject to certain exceptions as are more fully described in Condition 8 (Taxation). See “Taxation”.

Application has been made to admit the Securities to the official list of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (the “Official List”) and to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange’s Euro MTF
Market (the “Euro MTF Market”). The Euro MTF Market is not a regulated market for the purposes of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, “MiFID 11”) of the European Parliament and of the
Council on markets in financial instruments. References in this Offering Circular to the Securities being “listed” (and all related references) shall mean that the Securities have been admitted to
the Official List and admitted to trading on the Euro MTF Market.

The Securities are in bearer form and in the denomination of €100,000 each. The Securities will initially be represented by a temporary global security (the “Temporary Global Security™), without
interest coupons or talons, which will be deposited with a common depositary on behalf of Euroclear Bank SA/NV (“Euroclear”) and Clearstream Banking, S.A. (“Clearstream, Luxembourg”) on
or about the Issue Date. Interests in the Temporary Global Security will be exchangeable for interests in a permanent global security (the “Permanent Global Security” and together with the
Temporary Global Security, the “Global Securities”) as set out in the Temporary Global Security. The Permanent Global Security will be exchangeable for definitive Securities (the “Definitive
Securities™) as set out in the Permanent Global Security. See “Summary of Provisions relating to the Securities while in Global Form”.

The Securities are expected to be rated BBB- by Standard & Poor’s Global Ratings Europe Limited (“S&P”), Baa3 by Moody’s Investors Service Limited (“Moody’s”) and BBB by Fitch Ratings
Limited (“Fitch”). A rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency. S&P is
established in the European Union and is registered under Regulation (EC) No 1060/2009 (the “CRA Regulation”) and is included in on the list of credit rating agencies published by the European
Securities and Markets Authority on its website (“ESMA™) on its website (https://www.esma.europa.eu/supervision/credit-rating-agencies/risk). Each of Moody's and Fitch is established in the
United Kingdom and is registered under the CRA Regulation as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (“EUWA?) (as amended, the “UK CRA
Regulation™). The ratings issued by Moody's and Fitch have been endorsed by Moody's Deutschland GmbH and Fitch Ratings Ireland Limited respectively in accordance with the CRA Regulation.
Each of Moody's Deutschland GmbH and Fitch Ratings Ireland Limited is established in the EU and registered under the CRA Regulation and included in the list of credit rating agencies published
by ESMA on its website.

Prospective investors should have regard to the factors described under the section headed “Risk Factors” in this Offering Circular.

Sole Global Coordinator and
Structuring Agent to the Issuer and Guarantor

UniCredit



Joint Bookrunners

Barclays Crédit Agricole CIB
Deutsche Bank HSBC

J.P. Morgan Mizuho Securities



IMPORTANT INFORMATION

This Offering Circular constitutes a prospectus for the purposes of the Luxembourg Act dated July 16, 2019 on
Prospectuses for securities. This document does not constitute a prospectus for the purposes of Regulation (EU)
2017/1129, as amended. The Issuer and the Guarantor accept responsibility for the information contained in
this Offering Circular. To the best of the knowledge of the Issuer and the Guarantor (each having taken all
reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in this Offering Circular is in
accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

This Offering Circular may only be used for the purposes for which it has been published.

This Offering Circular is to be read in conjunction with all the documents which are incorporated herein by
reference (see “Documents Incorporated by Reference”). This Offering Circular shall be read and construed on
the basis that such documents are incorporated and form part of this Offering Circular.

This Offering Circular does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any of the
Securities in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or solicitation in such
jurisdiction. The offer or sale of Securities may be restricted by law in certain jurisdictions. None of the Issuer,
the Guarantor or the Joint Bookrunners (as defined in “Subscription and Sale” below) represents that this
Offering Circular may be lawfully distributed, or that the Securities may be lawfully offered, in compliance
with any applicable registration or other requirements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuant to an exemption
available thereunder, or assume any responsibility for facilitating any such distribution or offering. In particular,
no action has been taken by the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Joint Bookrunners which is intended to permit a
public offering of the Securities or distribution of this Offering Circular in any jurisdiction where action for that
purpose is required. Accordingly, no Securities may be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this
Offering Circular nor any advertisement or other offering material may be distributed or published in any
jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations.
Persons into whose possession this Offering Circular or any Securities may come must inform themselves about,
and observe, any such restrictions on the distribution of this Offering Circular and the offering and sale of
Securities. In particular, there are restrictions on the distribution of this Offering Circular and the offer or sale
of Securities in the United States, the United Kingdom, the European Economic Area, Italy, the Kingdom of
Spain, Switzerland and Singapore, see “Subscription and Sale” below.

No person is or has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation not contained in or
not consistent with this Offering Circular and any information or representation not so contained must not be
relied upon as having been authorised by or on behalf of the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Joint Bookrunners.

Neither the delivery of this Offering Circular nor the offering, sale or delivery of any Securities shall, under any
circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer or the Guarantor
since the date hereof or the date upon which this Offering Circular has been most recently amended or
supplemented or that there has been no adverse change in the financial position of the Issuer or the Guarantor
since the date hereof or the date upon which this Offering Circular has been most recently amended or
supplemented or that the information contained in it or any other information supplied in connection with the
Securities is correct as of any time subsequent to the date on which it is supplied or, if different, the date
indicated in the document containing the same. The Joint Bookrunners expressly do not undertake to review
the financial condition or affairs of the Issuer or the Guarantor during the life of the Securities or to advise any
investor in the Securities of any information coming to their attention.

The Joint Bookrunners have not independently verified the information contained herein. Accordingly, no
representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibility or liability (whether
fiduciary, in tort or otherwise) is accepted by the Joint Bookrunners as to the accuracy or completeness of the



information contained or incorporated in this Offering Circular or any other information provided by the Issuer
or the Guarantor in connection with the Securities. The Joint Bookrunners accept no liability in relation to the
information contained or incorporated by reference in this Offering Circular or any other information provided
by the Issuer or the Guarantor in connection with the Securities.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, none of the Joint Bookrunners accepts any responsibility for any act or
omission of the Issuer or the Guarantor, or for the contents of this Offering Circular or for any other statements
made or purported to be made by any Joint Bookrunner or on their behalf in connection with the Issuer, the
Guarantor or the issue and offering of any Securities. Each of the Joint Bookrunners accordingly disclaims all
and any liability whether arising in tort or contract or otherwise which it might otherwise have in respect of any
act or omission of the Issuer or the Guarantor, or this Offering Circular or any such statement.

No person is or has been authorised by the Issuer or the Guarantor to give any information or to make any
representation not contained in or not consistent with this Offering Circular or any other information supplied
in connection with the offering of any Securities and, if given or made, such information or representation must
not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Joint Bookrunner.

Neither this Offering Circular nor any other information supplied in connection with the Securities (a) is
intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or (b) should be considered as a recommendation
by the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Joint Bookrunners that any recipient of this Offering Circular or any other
information supplied in connection with the Securities should purchase any Securities. Each investor
contemplating purchasing any Securities should make its own independent investigation of the financial
condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness, of the Issuer and/or the Guarantor. Neither
this Offering Circular nor any other information supplied in connection with the Securities constitutes an offer
or invitation by or on behalf of the Issuer or the Guarantor or the Joint Bookrunners to any person to subscribe
for or to purchase any Securities.

The Joint Bookrunners make no assurances as to (i) whether the Securities will meet investor criteria and
expectations with regard to environmental impact and sustainability performance for any investors, (ii) whether
the use of the net proceeds will be used for Eligible Green Projects or (iii) the characteristics of the Eligible
Green Projects, including their environmental and sustainability criteria.

References in this section “Important Information” to a “Joint Bookrunner” shall include such entity in its
capacity as a Joint Bookrunner or Sole Global Coordinator and Structuring Agent to the Issuer and the Guarantor
as well, as applicable.

The Securities have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“Securities Act”) and are subject to U.S. tax law requirements. Subject to certain exceptions, Securities may
not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to U.S. persons.

Unless otherwise specified or the context requires, references to “dollars”, “U.S. dollars” and “U.S.$” are to
United States dollars, references to “BRL” are to Brazilian Real and references to “euro” and “€” are to the
currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union pursuant to the
Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended.

In connection with the issue of the Securities, UniCredit Bank AG (the “Stabilisation Manager”) (or any
person acting on behalf of the Stabilisation Manager) may over-allot Securities or effect transactions with
a view to supporting the market price of the Securities at a level higher than that which might otherwise
prevail. However, stabilisation may not necessarily occur. Any stabilisation action may begin on or after
the date on which adequate public disclosure of the terms of the offer of the Securities is made and, if
begun, may cease at any time, but it must end no later than the earlier of 30 days after the issue date of
the Securities and 60 days after the date of the allotment of the Securities. Any stabilisation action or



over-allotment must be conducted by the Stabilisation Manager (or any person(s) acting on behalf of the
Stabilisation Manager) in accordance with all applicable laws and rules.

MIFID Il product governance/Professional investors and ECPs only target market — Solely for the purposes of
each manufacturer’s product approval process, the target market assessment in respect of the Securities has led
to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Securities is eligible counterparties and professional clients
only, each as defined in MiFID I1; and (ii) all channels for distribution of the Securities to eligible counterparties
and professional clients are appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling or recommending the
Securities (a “distributor”) should take into consideration the manufacturers’ target market assessment;
however, a distributor subject to MiFID 11 is responsible for undertaking its own target market assessment in
respect of the Securities (by either adopting or refining the manufacturers’ target market assessment) and
determining appropriate distribution channels.

UK MiFIR product governance / Professional investors and ECPs only target market — Solely for the purposes
of each manufacturer’s product approval process, the target market assessment in respect of the Securities has
led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Securities is only eligible counterparties, as defined in
the FCA Handbook Conduct of Business Sourcebook (“COBS”), and professional clients, as defined in the UK
MIFIR; and (ii) all channels for distribution of the Securities to eligible counterparties and professional clients
are appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Securities (a “distributor”)
should take into consideration the manufacturers’ target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to
the FCA Handbook Product Intervention and Product Governance Sourcebook (the “UK MiFIR Product
Governance Rules™) is responsible for undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Securities
(by either adopting or refining the manufacturers’ target market assessment) and determining appropriate
distribution channels.

PRIIPs Regulation/Prohibition of sales to EEA retail investors — The Securities are not intended to be offered,
sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail
investor in the European Economic Area (“EEA”). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is
one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of MiFID II; or (ii) a customer within the meaning
of Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point
(10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID Il. Consequently, no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No
1286/2014 (as amended, the “PRIIPs Regulation”) for offering or selling the Securities or otherwise making
them available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Securities
or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPs
Regulation.

PRIIPs Regulation/Prohibition of sales to UK retail investors — The Securities are not intended to be offered,
sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail
investor in the United Kingdom (“UK™). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or
more) of: (i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part
of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA, or (ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the FSMA
and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA to implement Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer
would not qualify as a professional client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014
as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (the “UK Prospectus Regulation”). Consequently no
key information document required by the PRIIPs Regulation as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the
EUWA (the “UK PRIIPs Regulation™) for offering or selling the Securities or otherwise making them available
to retail investors in the UK has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Securities or otherwise
making them available to any retail investor in the UK may be unlawful under the UK PRIIPs Regulation.



Amounts payable under the Securities are calculated by reference to the 5 year Swap Rate which itself refers to
ICESWAP2/EURSFIXA, which is provided by the ICE Benchmark Administration Limited (“IBA”) and the
Euro Interbank Offered Rate (“EURIBOR”), which is provided by the European Money Markets Institute
(“EMMI™). As at the date of this Offering Circular, the EMMI appears on the register of administrators and
benchmarks established and maintained by the European Securities and Markets Authority pursuant to Article
36 of the Benchmark Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/1011) (the “EEA BMR”). The transitional provisions
in Article 51 of the EEA Benchmarks Regulation apply, such that IBA is not currently required to obtain
authorisation or registration (or recognition, endorsement or equivalence).

NOTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 309B(1)(C) OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES ACT
(CHAPTER 289) OF SINGAPORE (THE SFA) — the Securities are prescribed capital markets products (as
defined in the Securities and Futures (Capital Markets Products) Regulations 2018) and Excluded Investment
Products (as defined in MAS Notice SFA 04-N12: Notice on the Sale of Investment Products and MAS Notice
FAA-N16: Notice on Recommendations on Investment Products).
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Overview

This overview must be read as an introduction to this Offering Circular and any decision to invest in the
Securities should be based on a consideration of this Offering Circular as a whole, including the documents
incorporated by reference. Words and expressions defined in the Conditions shall have the same meanings in

this section.

Issuer:

Issuer’s Legal Entity Identifier
(“LEI”):

Guarantor:

Guarantor’s LEI:

Description of Securities:

Sole Global Coordinator and
Structuring Agent to the Issuer and
the Guarantor:

Joint Bookrunners:

Fiscal Agent:
Issue Price:
Maturity Date:

Interest:

Iberdrola Finanzas, S.A.U.

5493004PZNZWWBOUV 388

Iberdrola, S.A.
5QK37QC7NWQJ8D7WVQ45

€750,000,000 6 Year Non-Call Undated Deeply
Subordinated Reset Rate Guaranteed Securities (the
“Securities”), to be issued by the Issuer on 16 November
2021 (the “Issue Date”).

UniCredit Bank AG

Barclays Bank Ireland PLC, Crédit Agricole Corporate
and Investment Bank, Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft,
HSBC Continental Europe, J.P. Morgan AG, Mizuho
Securities Europe GmbH and UniCredit Bank AG

The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch
100 per cent.
Undated

The Securities will bear interest on their principal amount:

(i) from (and including) the Issue Date to (but
excluding) the First Reset Date at a rate of 1.575 per
cent. per annum commencing on 16 November
2022; and

(i) from (and including) the First Reset Date, at, in
respect of each Reset Period, the relevant 5 year
Swap Rate plus:

(A) in respect of the Reset Period commencing on
the First Reset Date to (but excluding) the First
Step-up Date, 1.676 per cent. per annum;

(B) in respect of the Reset Periods commencing on
the First Step-up Date to (but excluding) the
Second Step-up Date, 1.926 per cent. per
annum; and



Interest Payment Dates:

Status of the Securities:

Subordination of the Securities:

Guarantee and Status of Guarantee:

(C) in respect of any other Reset Period from and
including the Second Step-up Date, 2.676 per
cent. per annum,

all as determined by the Agent Bank (subject to the
operation of Condition 4 (d)), payable annually in arrear
on each Interest Payment Date.

All as more particularly described in Condition 4.

If the Issuer does not elect to redeem the Securities in
accordance with Condition 6(f) following the occurrence
of a Change of Control Event, the then Prevailing Interest
Rate, and each subsequent Prevailing Interest Rate
otherwise determined in accordance with the Conditions,
on the Securities shall be increased by 5 per cent. per
annum with effect from (and including) the date on which
the Change of Control Event occurred. See Condition 4.

Interest payments in respect of the Securities will be
payable annually in arrear on 16 November in each year,
commencing on 16 November 2022.

The Securities and the Coupons constitute direct,
unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Issuer
(senior only to Junior Obligations of the Issuer) and shall
at all times rank pari passu and without any preference
among themselves.

Subject to mandatory provisions of Spanish applicable
law, in the event of the Issuer being declared in insolvency
(concurso) under Spanish insolvency law, the rights and
claims of the Holders against the Issuer in respect of or
arising under the Securities and the Coupons will rank (i)
junior to the claims of all holders of Senior Obligations of
the Issuer, (ii) pari passu with the claims of holders of all
Parity Obligations of the Issuer and (iii) senior to the
claims of holders of all Junior Obligations of the Issuer.

Subject to applicable law, no Holder may exercise or
claim any right of set-off in respect of any amount owed
to it by the Issuer arising under or in connection with the
Securities or the Coupons and each Holder shall, by virtue
of being the Holder, be deemed to have waived all such
rights of set-off.

Payment of all sums expressed to be payable by the Issuer
under the Securities and the Coupons will be
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the
Guarantor on a subordinated basis.

The payment obligations of the Guarantor under the
Guarantee constitute direct, unsecured and subordinated
obligations of the Guarantor (senior only to Junior



Subordination of the Guarantee:

Optional Interest Deferral:

Optional Settlement of Arrears of
Interest:

Obligations of the Guarantor) and will at all times rank
pari passu and without preference among themselves.

Subject to mandatory provisions of Spanish applicable
law, in the event of the Guarantor being declared in
insolvency (concurso) under Spanish insolvency law, the
rights and claims of Holders against the Guarantor in
respect of or arising under the Guarantee will rank (i)
junior to the claims of the holders of all Senior
Obligations of the Guarantor, (ii) pari passu with the
claims of the holders of all Parity Obligations of the
Guarantor and (iii) senior to the claims of the holders of
all Junior Obligations of the Guarantor.

The Issuer may, at its sole discretion, elect to defer (in
whole or in part) any payment of interest on the Securities,
subject to limited exceptions, as more particularly
described in Condition 5 (Optional Interest Deferral).
Non-payment of interest so deferred shall not constitute a
default by the Issuer or Guarantor under the Securities or
the Guarantor or for any other purpose. Any amounts so
deferred, together with further interest accrued thereon (at
the Prevailing Interest Rate applicable from time to time),
shall constitute Arrears of Interest.

Arrears of Interest may be satisfied at the option of the
Issuer, in whole or in part, at any given time upon giving
not more than 14 and no less than seven Business Days’
notice to the Holders, the Fiscal Agent and the Paying
Agents prior to the relevant Optional Deferred Interest
Settlement Date informing them of its election so to
satisfy such Arrears of Interest (or part thereof) and
specifying the relevant Optional Deferred Interest
Settlement Date. If amounts in respect of Deferred
Interest Payments and Additional Interest Amounts are
paid in part: (i) all unpaid amounts of Deferred Interest
Payment shall be payable before any of the Additional
Interest Amounts; (ii) Deferred Interest Payments accrued
for any period shall not be payable until full payment has
been made of all Deferred Interest Payments that have
accrued during any earlier period and the order of
payment of the Additional Interest Amounts shall follow
that of the Deferred Interest Payment to which it relates;
and (iii) the amount of Deferred Interest Payment or
Additional Interest Amounts payable in respect of any of
the Securities in respect of any period, shall be pro rata to
the total amount of all unpaid Deferred Interest Payments
or, as the case may be Additional Interest Amounts
accrued on the Securities in respect of that period to the
date of payment. See Condition 5(b).



Mandatory Settlement of Arrears of
Interest:

Optional Redemption:

The Issuer shall pay any outstanding Arrears of Interest in
whole, but not in part, on the first occurring Mandatory
Settlement Date following the Interest Payment Date on
which any Deferred Interest Payment was first deferred.

“Mandatory Settlement Date” means the earliest of:

(i) assoon as reasonably practicable (but not later than
the fifth Business Day) following the date on which
a Compulsory Arrears of Interest Settlement Event
occurs;

(i) on the next scheduled Interest Payment Date on
which the Issuer does not elect to defer in whole the
interest accrued in respect of the relevant Interest
Period; or

(iii) the date on which the Securities are redeemed or
repaid in accordance with Condition 6 or become
due and payable in accordance with Condition 9.

Subject to certain exceptions, as more particularly
described in Condition 5 a “Compulsory Arrears of
Interest Settlement Event” shall have occurred if:

(i) a Dividend Declaration is made in respect of any
Junior Obligations or any Parity Obligations (other
than in respect of any Dividend Declaration made
exclusively in Ordinary Shares of the Guarantor); or

(i) the Guarantor or any of its subsidiaries has
repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired any
Junior Obligations or any Parity Obligations,

all as more particularly described in Condition 5.

The Issuer may redeem the Securities in whole, but not in
part, on any date during the period commencing on (and
including) 16 August 2027 and ending on (and including)
the First Reset Date and on any Interest Payment Date
thereafter at their principal amount together with any
accrued and unpaid interest up to (but excluding) the
Redemption Date and any outstanding Arrears of Interest.

The Issuer furthermore has the right to redeem the
Securities (in whole but not in part), at any time (other
than during the Relevant Period or upon any subsequent
Interest Payment Date) at the Make-whole Redemption
Amount (as more particularly described in Condition 6).

In addition, upon the occurrence of an Accounting Event,
a Capital Event, a Tax Event, a Withholding Tax Event, a
Change of Control Event or a Substantial Purchase Event,
the Securities will be redeemable (at the option of the
Issuer) in whole, but not in part, at the prices set out, and
as more particularly described, in Condition 6.
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Events of Default:

Change of Control:

Additional Amounts:

Form:

There are no events of default in respect of the Securities.
However, if an order is made or an effective resolution
passed for the winding-up, dissolution or liquidation of
the Issuer or Guarantor, then without notice from the
Holder of any Security to the Fiscal Agent, each Security
shall immediately become due and payable at its principal
amount together with any accrued and unpaid interest and
any outstanding Arrears of Interest.

In such case the Holder of a Security may, at its sole
discretion, institute steps in order to obtain a judgment
against the Issuer and/or the Guarantor for any amounts
due in respect of the Securities, including but not limited
to proving and/or claiming in the winding-up, dissolution,
liquidation or insolvency proceeding of the Issuer or the
Guarantor for such amount.

If a Change of Control Event has occurred and is
continuing, the Issuer may elect to redeem the Securities
in whole, but not in part, at any time, at the price set out,
and as more particularly described in Condition 6.

At or around the Issue Date, the Guarantor intends
(without thereby assuming any obligation) to undertake
with and for the benefit of all holders of certain of its
securities (“‘Qualifying Securities™) that, for so long as
any of the Securities is outstanding, following the
occurrence of a Change of Control Event in respect of
which it intends to deliver a notice exercising its right to
redeem the Securities under Condition 6(f) it will do so
only after making a tender offer, directly or indirectly, to
all holders of Qualifying Securities to repurchase their
respective Qualifying Securities at their respective
aggregate nominal amounts together with any interest
accrued until the day of completion of the repurchase.

Payments in respect of the Securities and the Coupons by
the Issuer or (as the case may be) the Guarantor under the
Guarantee will be made without withholding or deduction
for, or on account of, Taxes of the Kingdom of Spain,
unless such withholding or deduction is required by law.
In the event that any such withholding or deduction is
made, additional amounts will be payable by the Issuer or,
as the case may be, the Guarantor, subject to certain
exceptions as are more fully described in Condition 8(a).

The Securities will be classic global notes (CGNSs) in
bearer form and will initially be represented by a
Temporary Global Security, without interest coupons or
talons, which will be deposited with a common depositary
on behalf of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg on
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Denominations:

Substitution or Variation:

Governing Law:

Replacement Intention:

or about the Issue Date. Interests in the Temporary Global
Security will be exchangeable for interests in a Permanent
Global Security as set out in the Temporary Global
Security. The Permanent Global Security will be
exchangeable for Definitive Securities as set out in the
Permanent Global Security. See “Summary of Provisions
relating to the Securities while in Global Form”.

The Securities will be issued in denominations of
€100,000.

If at any time a Tax Event, a Withholding Tax Event, an
Accounting Event or a Capital Event has occurred on or
after the Issue Date, then the Issuer or the Guarantor may,
subject to Condition 12(c) (without any requirement for
the consent or approval of the Holders) and having given
not less than 15 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the Fiscal
Agent in accordance with Condition 14, the Holders
(which notice shall be irrevocable), at any time either (i)
exchange the Securities for new securities of the Issuer,
the Guarantor or any wholly-owned direct or indirect
finance subsidiary of the Guarantor with a guarantee of
the Guarantor or (ii) vary the terms of the Securities, so
that after such substitution or variation the Securities
remain or become, as the case may be, eligible for the
same or (from the perspective of the Issuer or the
Guarantor) more favourable tax, accounting or ratings
treatment than the treatment to which they were entitled
prior to the relevant event occurring.

The Fiscal Agency Agreement, the Securities, the
Coupons and the Guarantee and any non-contractual
obligations arising out of or in connection with them are
governed by and shall be construed in accordance with
English law, other than the provisions of Condition 2(a),
Condition 2(b), Condition 3(b) and Condition 3(c) and the
corresponding provisions of the Guarantee which are
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of
the Kingdom of Spain. See Condition 18. The due
authorization of the Securities is governed by, and
construed in accordance with, the laws of the Kingdom of
Spain.

The Guarantor intends (without thereby assuming any
obligation) at any time that it or the Issuer will redeem or
repurchase the Securities only to the extent that the
aggregate principal amount of the Securities to be
redeemed or repurchased does not exceed such part of the
net proceeds received by the Guarantor or any subsidiary
of the Guarantor on or prior to the date of such
redemption or repurchase from the sale or issuance by the
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Guarantor or such subsidiary to third party purchasers
(other than group entities of the Guarantor) of securities
which are assigned by S&P, at the time of sale or issuance,
an aggregate “‘equity credit” (or such similar
nomenclature used by S&P from time to time) that is equal
to or greater than the “equity credit” assigned to the
Securities to be redeemed or repurchased at the time of
their issuance (but taking into account any changes in
hybrid capital methodology or another relevant
methodology or the interpretation thereof since the
issuance of the Securities), unless:

(i) the rating assigned by S&P to the Guarantor is the
same as or higher than the long-term corporate
credit rating assigned to the Guarantor on the date
when the most recent additional hybrid security was
issued (excluding refinancings without net new
issuance) and the Guarantor is of the view that such
rating would not fall below this level as a result of
such redemption or repurchase, or

(ii) in the case of a repurchase or a redemption, taken
together with other relevant repurchases or
redemptions of hybrid securities of the Group, such
repurchase or redemption is of less than (a) 10 per
cent. of the aggregate principal amount of the
outstanding hybrid securities of the Group in any
period of 12 consecutive months or (b) 25 per cent.
of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding
hybrid securities of the Group in any period of 10
consecutive years, or

(iii) in the case of a repurchase or redemption, such
repurchase or redemption relates to an aggregate
principal amount of Securities which is less than or
equal to the excess (if any) above the maximum
aggregate principal amount of the Guarantor’s
hybrid capital to which S&P then assigns equity
content under its prevailing methodologies, or

(iv) the Securities are redeemed pursuant to a Tax Event,
a Capital Event, an Accounting Event, a Change of
Control Event, a Substantial Purchase Event or a
Withholding Tax Event, or

(v) if the Securities are not assigned an ““equity credit”
(or such similar nomenclature then used by S&P) at
the time of such redemption or repurchase, or

(vi) such redemption or repurchase occurs on or after
the Reset Date falling on 16 November 2047.
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Rating:

Listing and Admission to Trading:

Selling Restrictions:

Use of Proceeds:

Risk Factors:

ISIN:

Common Code:

The Securities are expected to be assigned on issue a
rating of BBB- by S&P, a rating of Baa3 by Moody’s and
a rating of BBB by Fitch. A rating is not a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be
subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time
by the assigning rating agency. Each of S&P, Moody’s and
Fitch is established in the European Union and is
registered under the CRA Regulation.

Application has been made for the Securities to be listed
on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange
and traded on the Euro MTF Market.

There are restrictions on offers of the Securities to EEA
and UK retail investors and into, or to persons resident in,
the United States (TEFRA D), the UK, Italy, the Kingdom
of Spain, Switzerland and Singapore. See “Subscription
and Sale”.

Category 2 selling restrictions will apply for the purposes
of Regulation S under the Securities Act.

The net proceeds of the issue of the Securities are
estimated at €747,093,750. The net proceeds of the issue
of the Securities will be used to finance and/or refinance,
in whole or in part, Eligible Green Projects. See “Use of
Proceeds”.

Prospective investors should carefully consider the
information set out in “Risk Factors” in conjunction with
the other information contained or incorporated by
reference in this Offering Circular.

XS§2405855375.

240585537.
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Documents Incorporated By Reference

The following documents are incorporated by reference in, and form part of, this Offering Circular:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)
Q)
(9)
(h)

the English language translation of the independent auditor’s report and the English language translation
of the audited annual accounts of the Issuer for the year ended 31 December 2020;

the English language translation of the independent auditor’s report and the English language translation
of the audited annual accounts of the Issuer for the year ended 31 December 2019;

the English language translation of the independent auditor’s report and the English language translation
of the audited consolidated annual accounts of the Guarantor for the year ended 31 December 2020;

the English language translation of the independent auditor’s report and the English language translation
of the audited consolidated annual accounts of the Guarantor for the year ended 31 December 2019;

the Sustainability Report 2020;
the Integrated Report 2021;
the Annual Corporate Governance Report 2020; and

the English language translation of each of the independent auditors’ limited review report and the
unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements of the Guarantor for the six-month period
ended 30 June 2021.

The information set out in the table below is contained in the documents incorporated by reference in paragraphs
(a) to (h) above.

Information incorporated by reference Page number

Iberdrola Finanzas, S.A.U.

Annual report for 2020 (including independent auditor’s report)

Independent auditor’s report PDF sheet

number 1-6
Balance sheet 2
Income statement 3
Statement of changes in equity 4-5
Statement of cash flows 6
Notes to the annual accounts 7-32
Director’s report 33-34
Proposed distribution of profit 35

Annual report for 2019 (including independent auditor’s report)

Independent auditor’s report PDF sheet

number 1-5
Balance sheet 2
Income statement 3
Statement of changes in equity 4-5
Statement of cash flows 6
Notes to the annual accounts 7-30
Director’s report 31-32
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Proposed application of losses

Iberdrola, S.A.
Annual Financial Report for 2020 (including audited consolidated annual accounts)

Independent audit report

Consolidated statements of financial position

Consolidated income statements

Consolidated statements of comprehensive income

Consolidated statements of changes in equity

Consolidated statements of cash flow

Notes to audited consolidated annual accounts

Appendix | — Additional information for 2020 in relation to group companies, joint
arrangements and associates of the lberdrola Group

Appendix Il — Sector regulations: Most significant regulatory developments in the year
Consolidated management report

Annual Financial Report for 2019 (including audited consolidated annual accounts)

Independent audit report

Consolidated statements of financial position
Consolidated income statements

Consolidated statements of comprehensive income
Consolidated statements of changes in equity
Consolidated statements of cash flow

Notes to audited consolidated annual accounts

Appendix | -—— Year 2019 additional information related to group companies, jointly-
controlled companies and associates of the Iberdrola Group

Appendix Il — Industry regulation and functioning of the electricity and gas system
Consolidated directors' report 2019

Sustainability Report 2020
Introduction
Independent Assurance Report

Letter from the Chairman & CEO

Corporate reputation: recognitions/awards, presence on indexes and external ratings
I. Iberdrola, the utility of the future

1.1 About Iberdrola

I.2. Iberdrola’s contribution to the Sustainable Development Goals

I.3. Business Model and Strategy

Long-term risks and opportunities. Comprehensive Risk System

I.4. Our ESG + F proposal: "Energy to thrive"
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33

PDF sheet
number 3-13

5-6

7

8

9-10

11
12-162
163-181

181-203
204-281

PDF sheet
number 3-11

4-5
6

7

8-9

10
11-161
162-178

178-217
218-276

5-6

PDF Sheet
number 4-8

7-11
12-14
15
16-37
38-56
57-98
72-74
99-102



[1. Environmental

I1.1. Fight against climate change and protection of biodiversity

I11. Social

I11.1. Workplace safety and employee development

[11.2. Innovation, digitisation and quality for our customers

I11.3. Contribution to the well-being of our communities

IV. Governance

IV.1. Good governance, transparency and stakeholder engagement
IV.2. Promotion of socially responsible practices in the supply chain
V. Financial

V.1. Sustainable Economic Growth

V1. About this report

V1.1 Scope of information

V1.2 Defining report content. Materiality analysis

V1.3. Disclosures from the Statement of Non-Financial Information
VI1.4. GRI content index

V1.5. SASB content index

V1.6 Content index in relation to the principles of the Global Compact
VII. Annexes

VI1.1. Annex 1: Information Supplementary to the Statement of Non-Financial
Information - Sustainability Report 2020

VI1.2. Annex 2: Iberdrola’s Contribution to the SDGs and targets of the 2030 Agenda

Integrated Report 2021
Letter from the Chairman & CEO
Iberdrola Today
Business Model and Strategy
Iberdrola’s Primary Businesses
Our Assets
A Framework of Trust
Risks
About this report
Glossary of terms and abbreviations

Annual Corporate Governance Report 2020
Ownership structure

General shareholders’ meeting

Structure of the company's administration
Related Party and Intragroup transactions
Risk management and control systems

Internal risk management and control systems related to the process of publishing
financial information (ICFR)

Degree of compliance with corporate governance recommendations
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104
105-170

172
173-223
224-251
252-310

312
313-367
368-385

386
387-422

423
424-429
430-434
435-438
439-451
452-455
456-458

459
460-528

529-543

4-5
8-28
29-47
49-63
65-79
81-94
90-92
95-98
99

2-10
11-13
14-63
64-69
70-79
80-96

97-112



Further information of interest
Annex

Actions of Iberdrola, S.A. and Iberdrola Renovables Energia, S.A.U. relating to the
hiring of Club Exclusivo De Negocios y Transacciones, S.L. (CENYT)

Interim report for first half of 2021
Limited review report

Consolidated statement of financial position

Consolidated income statement

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Notes to the condensed consolidated interim financial statements
Appendix

Management report

The Issuer does not publish interim financial statements.

113
114-115
116-117

PDF Sheet
number 1-3

3-4

5

6

7-8

9
10-49
50-59
60-75

Any documents themselves incorporated by reference in the documents incorporated by reference into this
Offering Circular shall not form part of this Offering Circular. Those parts of the documents incorporated by
reference into this Offering Circular which are not specifically incorporated by reference into this Offering
Circular are either not relevant for prospective investors in the Securities or the relevant information is included

elsewhere in this Offering Circular.

Copies of documents incorporated by reference in this Offering Circular are available, free of charge, from the
registered office of the Issuer, the registered office of the Guarantor, from the specified offices of the Paying
Agents for the time being in London and Luxembourg (at the discretion of the Paying Agents) and available for

viewing on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu).
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Risk Factors

Each of the Issuer and the Guarantor believes that the following factors may affect its ability to fulfil its
obligations under the Securities. Most of these factors are contingencies which may or may not occur and
neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor is in a position to express a view on the likelihood of any such contingency
occurring.

In addition, factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with the
Securities are also described below.

Each of the Issuer and the Guarantor believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks
inherent in investing in the Securities, at the date of this Offering Circular, but the inability of the Issuer or the
Guarantor to pay interest, principal or other amounts on or in connection with the Securities may occur for
other reasons which may not be considered significant risks by the Issuer and the Guarantor based on
information currently available to them or which they may not currently be able to anticipate. Prospective
investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Offering Circular (including any
documents incorporated by reference herein) and reach their own views prior to making any investment
decision.

Factors that may affect the Issuer’s ability to fulfil its obligations under or in connection with the
Securities

1.1 Risks relating to the Group’s business activities, industries and operations
1.1.1 Country risk

The activities of the different businesses that the Group develops are subject, to a greater or lesser extent and
depending on their characteristics, to various risks inherent to the country where they operate. These risks
include the following:

e Imposition of monetary limitations and other restrictions on the movement of capital.

e Changes in the trade environment and administrative policies, including import tariffs on certain
equipment and services.

e Economic crisis, political instability and social riots affecting operations.
e Nationalisation or expropriation of assets.

e Exchange rate fluctuations and restrictions on the capacity to convert and transfer currencies from one
country to another.

e Cancellation of operating licenses.

e Anticipated termination of Government contracts.

e Changes in tax rates in fees and taxes and/or new taxes.

e Changes in the economic terms governing the hand-back of concessions.

e Worsening of sovereign ratings, generating an increase in country risk premiums.

e  Other regulatory changes.

The results of the Group’s subsidiaries, their market value and their contribution to the Group may be affected
by such risks.
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In the second quarter of 2021 Iberdrola accounted for the increase of the corporate tax rate in the United
Kingdom from 19% to 25%, effective 1 April 2023. This modification involved recalculating the Group’s
deferred taxes and represented a negative impact of €453 million as at 30 June 2021. It must be emphasised, in
this case, that in addition to being non-recurring, this item had no impact on cash.

In the United States of America, the potential approval of the Build Back Better Act is currently under
negotiation, promoted by the Democratic Party, that could imply increases in the corporate tax rates.

On 30 September 2021 the President of Mexico sent an initiative to reform the Constitution (articles 25, 27 and
28), that revokes the current legal framework of the electricity industry (Electricity Public Service Law of 1992
and the energy reform of 2013), establishing a completely new one.

e According to the potential reform, all the electricity activities (generation, transmission, distribution
and supply) would be exclusively carried out by the State, through the Mexican Federal Electricity
Commission (the Comision Federal de Electricidad or “CFE™) (it will be integrated as a decentralized
administrative organization, instead of a State Productive Company). Existing regulatory bodies
should be integrated into CFE.

e Asaconsequence, all previous supply schemes are revoked, all power generation permits are cancelled
and private companies are no longer allowed to sell electricity to private customers. CFE will develop
the dispatch of the country's generating units and clean energy certificates (CELs) will be cancelled.

1.1.2 Business risks

The Group has presence in the regulated businesses of electricity transmission and distribution in Spain, the
UK, the United States of America (through Avangrid, Inc. —“Avangrid”-) and Brazil (through Neoenergia, S.A.
—“Neoenergia”-). In the United States of America, the Group also has presence in the natural gas distribution
sector.

The Group operates in the renewables industry in Spain, the United States of America (through Avangrid), the
UK, Mexico, Brazil (through Neoenergia) and other countries.

Finally, the Generation and Supply business of the Group operates in the thermal generation sector in Spain,
Mexico and Brazil (through Neoenergia) and the electricity and gas retail segment in Spain and the UK and, to
a lesser degree, in Brazil (through Neoenergia), Italy, France, Germany and Ireland.

The main operations of the Iberdrola Group are concentrated in Spain, the UK, the United States of America,
Brazil and Mexico, with increasing presence in other countries such as France, Germany, Portugal and
Australia. The presence in countries other than those mentioned herein is not significant at a Group level from
an economic point of view as of today, although there are growth plans in some other countries (focused in the
offshore business).

In relation to the Group’s Network business, the regulations of each country in which it operates establish
regularly revised frameworks, guaranteeing that these businesses will receive reasonable and predictable
returns. These frameworks include incentives and penalties for efficiency, service quality and, where applicable,
for credit cost, which have a minor, immaterial impact overall. Any structural and significant changes to the
aforementioned regulation may represent a risk for the Network businesses.

In general, the profitability of the Iberdrola Group’s Network businesses is not exposed to demand risk, except
for the Brazilian subsidiaries. The Iberdrola Group’s Network businesses in Spain and in the UK are not exposed
to any market risk associated with energy prices, since they do not sell energy.
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The Network businesses in Brazil and some of the businesses in the United States of America sell energy to
regulated customers at a price determined by certain previously approved tariffs. The regulatory frameworks in
both countries guarantee, in the ordinarily course of events, that sums will be collected in subsequent tariff
readjustment reviews for possible purchase price deviations of energy from those previously recognised in the
tariff.

Given the above, in the case of extraordinary events (extreme drought in Brazil, catastrophic storms in the
United States of America, pandemics, etc.), occasional temporary imbalances between payments and
collections may arise with an impact on the cash flows of some of these businesses and potentially on profits
recognised under International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRS-EU).

As for the Group’s Renewable business, which includes hydroelectric, wind (onshore and offshore) and
photovoltaic generation, as well as storage (pumping and batteries) technologies, the regulations of each country
in which the Group operates establish regulatory frameworks aimed at promoting the development of renewable
energies based on regulated tariffs and on formulas which may include premiums, green certificates and tax
deductions, in order to allow investors to obtain reasonable returns. Any structural and significant changes to
said regulations may represent a risk for such businesses.

In addition to the aforementioned regulatory risk, the Group’s Renewable Energy businesses may be exposed
to a greater or lesser extent, among others, to resource risk (mostly hydraulic and wind, and to a lesser extent
solar), market risk and construction risk:

e In the medium to long term, years with lower than average water and/or wind resources are offset by
years with above-average overall resources.

e  Water resource risk basically affects the Renewables business in Spain, and to a lesser extent Brazil.

e Despite having a large water storage capacity in Spain, Iberdrola Group’s annual results depend
significantly on the rainfall contributions. In Spain the changes in output from a dry year to a rainy
year with respect to the average value can be up to -4,000 GWh and +5,000 GWh respectively.

e The risk of wind resources in any given year affects the Renewable Energy Businesses of all countries
in which the Group operates. At a global level, the Group considers that the wind resource risk is
mitigated by the large number of wind farms available and their geographical diversification.

e For those installations without regulated tariffs, or fixed price power purchase agreements (“PPAs”),
market risk arises. Management of market risk of the Renewables Businesses in Spain, the UK, Brazil
and Mexico is transferred to the Generation and Retail Businesses of those countries so that it can be
integrated into a single risk position. Management of market risk of the Renewables Business in the
United States of America and Australia is integrated within the businesses themselves.

e Construction risk arises from the Group’s renewable projects under construction and development in
the different countries where it operates. Specifically, offshore wind projects require significant
investments (even before the final investment decision) subject to complex proceedings, long
construction deadlines, operating difficulties and technology risks.

In relation to its Generation and Retail businesses, the Group has a wide array of thermal generation plants in
Spain and Mexico, a single thermal plant in Brazil and another one in the United States of America. The
integration of risk positions between the Generation business (thermal and renewable) and the Retail business
largely reduces the Group’s market risk, in particular in Spain and Mexico. A significant number of the plants
in Mexico and the Brazilian plant have long-term PPAs with the CFE (Mexican state electricity company) and
Brazilian electricity distribution companies Companhia de Electricidade do Estado da Bahia, S.A. and
Companhia Energética de Pernambuco, S.A. respectively.
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The various Energy Management units supply electricity and gas to the Retail business at wholesale market
prices (hourly or forward) in accordance with the usual practices of each of the countries in which the Group
operates, and manage the sale and purchase of surpluses and shortfalls. The Retail businesses sell energy to end
customers at fixed or indexed prices, together with other services, at such terms as may be customary in the
retail markets of the countries in which they operate (Spain, the UK, Mexico, Brazil, Italy, France, Germany
and Ireland).

Main risks in the Generation and Retail business notwithstanding the explanation above are the following:

e Market prices for electricity, both wholesale and retail, are closely correlated with prices of fuel (oil
and gas) and, if applicable, of emission rights or similar formulas.

e Spot prices in the wholesale electricity market exhibit marked volatility as a result of: 1) the volatility
of spot prices of fuels and emission allowances, 2) fluctuating demand, 3) availability of wind or water
and 4) possible operational problems in networks or power plants.

e Forward electricity prices are further influenced by projections of new generation plants coming on
stream and of increases or decreases in future reserve capacity.

e In general terms: 1) margins of the Generation business (thermal and renewable sold to market) are
subject to the risk of the differential between the wholesale spot price and the cost of production, and
2) margins of the Retail business are subject to i) the risk of the price differential between the wholesale
spot market and forward retail prices, ii) the degree of competition among retailers and iii) the risk of
possible regulatory intervention in the form of regulated tariffs, taxes or other obligations (i.e. Energy
anti-poverty measures, maximum prices regulated in the UK, etc.).

e Risk of growth of the demand linked to the economic growth and demand variation as a result of
changes in temperatures (in the long term warm years tend to compensate cold years).

e Risks arising from brief and extreme climate conditions with impact in customers’ demand and energy
prices, for example very low temperatures, which could lead the Group to suffer losses in order to be
able to honour its contracts.

The Group is exposed not only to changes in energy prices, but also to adverse movements in the prices of
commodities (copper, aluminium, steel and others), with possible impact in future investment costs. When final
investment decisions are taken by Iberdrola this risk is closed or transferred to the vendors, to the extent
possible. The residual risk is actively monitored, and hedging is contracted when appropriate.

From the perspective of its impact on business results, the main risk in respect of the Group’s nuclear plant in
Spain arises from unscheduled outages (partially covered by a loss of profits insurance policy over and above
an excess). The Group’s nuclear power plants are also exposed to risks relating to their operations and risks
arising from the storage and handling of radioactive materials.

In relation to the Group’s Gas supply operations, in 2020 the Group supplied gas in Spain at indexed prices to
European markets.

Our electricity generation in Mexico is gas-intensive, and gas prices are therefore an essential component of
this risk. In 2020, approximately 69% of the electricity generated in Mexico was sold under long-term sales
agreements (to the CFE and, to a lesser extent, to other major industrial customers), whereby the risk associated
with the purchase price of gas used in generating this electricity is passed on.
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1.1.3 Operational risks

Direct or indirect losses may arise as a result of inadequate internal procedures, technical failures, human error
or external factors in the Group’s activities.

Key operational risks include the following:

e Malfunctions, explosions, fire, toxic spillages or polluted emissions in gas and electricity distribution
networks and in both traditional and renewable generating plants.

e Force majeure cases.

e  Sabotage and/or terrorism.

e Physical security.

e  Operations in treasury and energy markets.

e  System failures.

e Hazards at work and third-party accidents in own facilities.

Any of these risks could cause damage or destruction to the Group’s facilities and financial losses, as well as
injuries to third parties or damage to the environment, along with the ensuing lawsuits, especially in the event
of power outages caused by accidents at our distribution networks and possible penalties imposed by the
authorities.

Although many of these risks are unpredictable, the Group seeks to mitigate them by carrying out the necessary
investments, implementing operation and maintenance procedures and programmes (supported by quality
control systems), planning appropriate employee training, and taking out the required insurance covering both
material damages and civil liability.

Climate change (which possible outcomes include less stable or predictable weather patterns) comprises several
long-term risks which, to a greater or lesser extent, are not, however, new to the sector. Risks may be grouped
in the following categories:

e Physical risks due to potential material impacts on facilities and the Group’s operating costs and
business operations. These risks could be split into acute risks and chronic risk (changes in
precipitation patterns and other natural resources). In this regard, the Group is dependent upon
hydrological, solar and wind conditions prevailing from time to time in the geographic regions in
which its facilities are located.

e Transition risks, linked to risks arising from global decarbonisation, such as regulatory, market prices,
technological, reputational and demand changes.

e  Other risks, such as credit impairment of counterparties (suppliers, banks, etc.), social phenomena
(humanitarian crises, impact on crops and fishing, refugee crises, epidemics, etc.) and larger
competition for financial resources.

The impact of climate change, despite being perceivable already in the short-term (in the form of higher
intensity and frequency of climate events in certain geographical areas), is progressive and acts over relatively
long periods of time. This risk could be considered a systemic global risk.

Whilst the Group has implemented risk management tools in respect of climate change and has proven
experience in the management of weather events and is focusing on growing in low emissions activities (such
as renewable energies, integrating smart grids, electrification of transport and flexible smart networks), there
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can be no assurance that the Group will not be impacted by climate change risks. This could have a material
adverse effect on the Group’s business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

With regards to cybersecurity risks, the Group companies may be affected by threats and vulnerabilities in
connection with information, control systems or information and communications systems used by the Group,
or by any consequences of unauthorised access to or the use, disclosure, degradation, interruption, modification
or destruction of information or information systems, including the consequences of acts of terrorism in respect
of these.

Any of the below threats and vulnerabilities may impact on the Group’s:

e Operations Technology (OT), such as IT and communications systems used to manage industrial
operations (production, management and distribution of energy) or physical safety systems (fire
protection, CCTV, alarm reception centres).

e Administration or customer interfaces (TI), in particular violation of their personal information, under
the umbrella of General Data Protection Rules (GDPR) in Europe and other countries.

e Reputation.

These risks are managed in accordance with the basic principles defined in internal rules promoting the safe
use of IT and communications systems and other cyber assets, reinforcing detection, prevention, defence and
response abilities before possible attacks.

1.1.4 Other risks

The risk control and management system of the Group observes the continuous follow-up and detection of
emerging risks and risks of not a strict financial nature which the investors’ community has been monitoring in
the last years, such as the non-compliance with regulations and expectations of stakeholders in respect of
environmental aspects, the impact on society and the Group’s corporate governance (ESG). The impact said
risks may have, which are reported both internally and externally, are of a varied nature and may be both
economic and reputational.

In terms of fraud and corruption risks, Iberdrola Group has a Compliance system consisting of a set of
substantive rules, formal procedures and material actions aimed at guaranteeing compliance with ethical
principles and applicable legal provisions and preventing, avoiding and mitigating risks resulting from irregular,
unethical or illegal behaviours from Iberdrola Group’s professionals within the organisation. Departments and
divisions which have been directly assigned with the execution and development of this set of rules, formal
procedures and material actions are also part of the Compliance system. As part of the Compliance System, the
Code of Ethics and the Compliance Unit must be highlighted. The system has been developed following the
top domestic and international practices in terms of compliance, fraud prevention and fight against corruption.

For further information about all the risks reflected in this section, please refer to pages 90 to 92 of the Integrated
Report 2021, pages 72 to 74 of the Sustainability Report 2020, pages 70 to 96 of the Annual Corporate
Governance Report 2020 and the section 4 of the consolidated directors’ report of the audited consolidated
annual accounts of the Guarantor for the year ended 31 December 2020. Specifically, with regards to climate
change risk, the mitigation factors and the TCFD reporting, please refer to the Sustainability Report 2020
(section “Iberdrola and the TCFD”) and Note 6 and the section 4.5.5 of the consolidated directors’ report of the
audited consolidated annual accounts of the Guarantor for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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1.2 Financial risks

The Group is structurally subject to financial risks over which it keeps a permanent control, monitoring the
performance of the different financial markets where it operates and complying with the risk limits set by their
Risks Policies.

1.2.1 Liquidity risk

The exposure to adverse situations in the debt or capital markets or to events resulting from the Group’s
economic and financial situation might hinder or prevent the Group from obtaining the financing required to
properly carry on its business activities.

The Group’s liquidity policy is designed to ensure that it can meet its payment obligations without having to
obtain financing under unfavourable terms. For this purpose, various management measures are used, such as
maintaining committed credit facilities that are adequate in terms of amount, term and flexibility, diversification
in the satisfaction of financing needs through access to different markets and geographical areas, and
diversification of the maturities of the debt issued.

As at 30 June 2021 the Group had a solid liquidity position in cash and enough available credit lines to
comfortably comply with liquidity requirements even in the case of a greater contraction of markets.

1.2.2 Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in market interest rates affecting cash flows and the market
value of debt in respect of items in the balance sheet (debt and derivatives). In order to adequately manage and
limit this risk, Iberdrola defines annually the optimal proportion of fixed and floating debt. Once the objective
structure has been defined, dynamic management is carried out throughout the year assuring compliance with
objective structure and risk limits: new financing at a fixed or floating rate and / or close interest rate derivatives,
either to fix the interest rate (or limit its variability) of floating rate debt or to swap debt from fixed to floating
rate. Derivatives may also be used to set the cost of future debt issues, provided they are highly probable.

Floating rate borrowings and cash placements are typically pegged to market rates (mainly Euribor, Libor-
pound sterling, Libor-dollar and the Broad National Consumer Price Index of Brazil (the indice Nacional de
Precos ao Consumidor Amplo or “IPCA™) or the Brazilian Interbank Deposit (Certificado de Depdsito
Interbancario or “CDI”) for the debt of Brazilian subsidiaries).

Despite central banks still maintaining a low interest rates environment, which are expected to continue, general
expectations on economic growth have improved since last year. As a consequence of this, there is a risk central
banks in these countries could accelerate the speed of interest rates increases as a tool to manage inflation rates.

In order to mitigate this risk, as part of the interest rate financing strategy, the Group uses interest rate derivatives
to hedge the cost of the future financings considered as highly probable according to the budget or strategic
Plan. The Group maintains a portfolio of outstanding derivatives that protect the Group in case of future interest
rate hikes.

1.2.3 Exchange rate risk

Currency risk resulting from fluctuations in foreign currency rates compared to the functional currency can
occur in the following scenarios:

e Collections and payments for supplies, services or equipment acquisition in currencies other than the
operating currency.
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e Income and expenses incurred by certain foreign subsidiaries indexed to currencies other than the
operating currency.

e Debt and financial expense denominated in currencies other than the operating currency.

e Consolidated profit or loss of the foreign subsidiaries (mainly US dollar, pounds sterling and Brazilian
reais), since Iberdrola Group’s reporting currency is the euro.

e Consolidated net equity value of investments in foreign subsidiaries.

e Expense for taxes in Mexico because the operating currency (US dollar) differs from the currency for
purposes of calculation of corporate tax (Mexican peso).

The Group reduces this risk by:

e Carrying out all its economic flows in the operating currency of each Group company, provided that
this is possible and economically viable and efficient, or otherwise through the use of financial
derivatives.

e Financially hedging, as far as possible, the risk of transfer of earnings expected for the current year,
thereby limiting the ultimate impact on Group earnings.

e Financially hedging, as far as possible, the exchange rate risk in the Mexican corporate tax, thereby
limiting the ultimate impact on the earnings of Mexico and of the Group.

e Mitigating the impact on the consolidated net equity value of a hypothetical depreciation of currencies
due to the Group’s investments in foreign subsidiaries by maintaining an adequate percentage of
foreign currency debt, as well as through financial derivatives.

Furthermore, the Group’s diversification in the different geographies and the strength of the business currencies
such as the Euro, the US dollar and the pounds sterling act as an important mitigating factor for the stability of
the Group’s results.

1.2.4 Credit risk

The Group is exposed to the credit risk arising from the possibility that counterparties (customers, suppliers,
financial institutions, partners, insurers, etc.) fail to comply with contractual obligations.

This risk is properly managed and limited, depending on the type of transaction and the creditworthiness of
counterparties. In particular, there is a Corporate Credit Risk Policy setting the framework and action principles
for proper risk management, which are further developed at business and country level (admission criteria,
approval flows, authority levels, rating tools, exposure measurement methodologies, etc.) through procedures.

With regard to credit risk on trade receivables from electricity and gas retail supply activity in the liberalised
market, despite the extraordinary situation to have arisen from the COVID-19 pandemic, the historical cost of
defaults has remained moderate at slightly above 1% of total turnover of this activity across all countries in
which it is carried out.

1.2.5 Solvency risk

The Group faces the risk of its financial situation getting worse and leading to a downward revision of the credit
rating assigned by rating agencies, which may make financing more expensive or unavailable. In order to
mitigate this risk, the Group continuously monitors the solvency and equity ratios most commonly followed by
rating agencies as well as the risks that may have an impact on those ratios in order to anticipate or undertake
actions aimed at correcting possible instances of non-compliance.
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Moreover, communication is active with investors and rating agencies in order to explain the performance of
financial indicators and their deviations, if any.

For further information about financial risks please refer to note 4 and section 4 of the consolidated directors’
report of the audited consolidated annual accounts of the Guarantor for the year ended 31 December 2020.

1.3 Legal and regulatory risk

1.3.1 The Group is subject to laws and regulations concerning its business which can be amended or
supplemented from time to time

The businesses of the Iberdrola Group are subject to laws and regulations concerning tariffs (especially the
regulated business and the renewables business) and other aspects of their activities in each of the countries in
which the Group operates. In addition, the Group is subject to laws and regulations concerning environmental
requirements and other aspects of its activities (such as reporting, health and safety and corporate governance).
Whilst a description of main regulatory developments in 2020 is contained in Appendix Il of the 2020 audited
consolidated annual accounts of the Guarantor, prospective investors and their advisers should make their own
analysis of the legislation and regulations applicable to the Group and of the impact they may have on the Group
for the purposes of evaluating any investment in the Securities.

The tariffs (mainly applicable to the “Network™ business) in the countries and regions where the Group operates
are generally subject to periodic review by the regulatory authorities.

A proposal of constitutional change which will impact the electricity sector has been submitted by the Mexican
Government on 30 September 2021 (see section 1.1.1 Country risk).

As a consequence of the global increase of energy prices, which have had a significant impact on some of the
Spanish electricity bills, the Spanish Government has launched the following regulatory measures:

e On 1 June 2021 the Spanish Council of Ministers approved a CO2 clawback draft law, which is
currently under the process of parliamentary approval and is expected to enter into force by year end.
The updated draft establishes that non CO2-emitting power stations which started operations prior to
October 2003 (excluding renewable assets under the regulated regime, non-mainland installations,
cogeneration and plants <10 MW) will have to return to the system 90% of the CO2 cost embedded in
the electricity prices of thermal power plants setting the marginal prices in the Iberian pool when prices
of emission rights is above 20.67 €/ton. This will impact the profitability of nuclear, hydro and (a small
portion) of wind assets of the Group in Spain.

e On 14 September 2021 a Royal Decree-Law was approved by the Spanish Government, addressing
several factors. The most relevant one is the temporary gas clawback in force until 31 March 2022 (the
“Gas Clawback™). According to it, all non CO2-emitting power stations (excluding renewable assets
under the regulated regime and plants <10 MW) are liable to return to the system an amount equivalent
to 90% of the margin obtained due to high prices of gas in the market (when gas prices are above
€20/MWhg).

On 26 October 2021, a new Royal Decree-Law was approved by the Spanish Government which,
among other matters, included certain exceptions to the application of the Gas Clawback. In particular,
such new Royal Decree-Law reduced the impact of the Gas Clawback by excluding from such
mechanism the energy which is covered by, among others, a physical power purchase agreement or a
financially settled instrument with a fixed price (i.e., not indexed to the electricity wholesale marginal
price) entered into (a) before 16 September 2021 or (b) on or after 16 September 2021, provided that,
in this last case, such agreement or instrument has a term of at least one year.
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e On 13 October 2021 the European Commission issued a communication stating, among others, the
various tools that the member countries have in order to combat the impact on bills of high electricity,
gas and CO2 prices. Political support for the EU emissions trading system and the fight against climate
change were emphasized, and also the member states were encouraged to promote the development of
renewables. A study to assess benefits and drawbacks of the current wholesale electricity market
design will be carried out.

The Group is unable to predict future changes to any of the laws or regulations applicable to its businesses or
to their interpretation. The introduction of any such changes or new regulatory requirements may adversely
impact the remuneration received by the Group for its regulated activities, as well its operating, capital and raw
material costs, all of which could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, prospects, financial
condition and results of operations.

For further details on the legislative and regulatory context in which the Iberdrola Group operates, see also the
section entitled “Description of Iberdrola, S.A.—Regulation” herein.

In addition, the Group is subject to extensive environmental protection laws and regulations that require the
preparation of environmental impact studies, the maintenance of relevant authorisations, licences and permits
and the fulfilment of certain other requirements.

Any such environmental authorisations and licences may not be granted or may be revoked as a result of, among
others, a breach of the conditions imposed by such authorisations or may be amended and any of this could
have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

In respect to litigation and arbitration, the Group companies are party to certain in-court and out-of-court
disputes within the ordinary course of their activities, the final result of which, in general, is uncertain. An
adverse result could have a material adverse effect on the Iberdrola Group’s business, prospects, financial
condition and results of operations. However, the Group has provisioned for responsibilities arising from
litigation in progress and from indemnity payments, obligations, collateral and other similar guarantees, and
those aimed at covering environmental risks, according to its criteria and independent legal reports. See Note
28 and Note 46 of the audited consolidated annual accounts of the Guarantor for the year ended 31 December
2020.

1.3.2 The Group may engage in acquisitions and investments and disposals from time to time

The Group may engage in acquisitions, investments and disposals of interests from time to time. There can be
no assurance that the Group will identify suitable acquisition opportunities, obtain the financing necessary to
complete and support such acquisitions or investments, acquire businesses on satisfactory terms, or that any
acquired business will prove to be profitable. In addition, acquisitions and investments involve a number of
risks, including possible adverse effects on the Group’s operating income, risks associated with unanticipated
events or liabilities relating to the acquired assets or businesses which may not have been disclosed during due
diligence investigations, difficulties in the assimilation of the acquired operations, technologies, systems,
services and products, and risks arising from contractual conditions that are triggered by a change of control of
an acquired company.

Any failure to successfully integrate such acquisitions could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s
business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

In particular, on 21 October 2020, Avangrid, the United States of America network subsidiary of Iberdrola,
announced its merger with PNM Resources, Inc. (“PNM”), an owner of electrical power distribution
concessions in the States of New Mexico and Texas and other regulated electricity businesses. Avangrid will
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acquire PNM at a price of U.S.$50.3 per share and total consideration of approximately U.S.$4.3 billion. The
acquisition is subject to obtaining the necessary regulatory filings and approvals. Closing is expected by year
end 2021.

1.4 Risks relating to macro-economic conditions

Economic growth and macroeconomic conditions (for example, consumer confidence, unemployment trends
and financial markets) of the countries where the Group operates can affect our operations, and even as a result
of deterioration of the economy of third countries, given the high level of interconnectivity in the world today.
The Group is not able to predict how the economic cycle is likely to develop in the short term or the coming
years. Any further deterioration of the current economic situation in the markets in which the Group operates
could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, prospects, financial condition and results of
operations.

COVID-19

Globally, worldwide or national health-related events, including the outbreak of contagious diseases, epidemics
or pandemics, could significantly affect our operations.

On 11 March 2020 the World Health Organisation qualified as a pandemic the breakout of the coronavirus
COVID-19. In addition to the social impact that COVID-19 has had, this situation resulted in a sharp contraction
of GDP growth in 2020 in the countries where the Group is focused (followed by positive growth rates in 2021),
a substantial increase in economic uncertainty and greater volatility in financial markets.

Moreover, in order to mitigate the economic impact of COVID-19 and facilitate a faster financial recovery, the
different governments and central banks have passed or announced several aid plans for economic recovery,
including liquidity plans, soft loans, relaxing tax payments, measures to support the most vulnerable groups
and the most affected sectors, as well as several regulatory measures.

It must be noted that the regulated networks business in the countries where the Group is present have regulatory
frameworks that recognise ordinary rate adjustments due to involuntary deviations in income and expenses and
foresee extraordinary adjustments due to deviations resulting from force majeure causes, such as those resulting
from COVID-19. Therefore, the impact of the pandemic in the regulated networks business has been mitigated
by the regulatory and legal measures approved in each of the countries in which the group operates.

It must be noted that as a result of COVID-19 the Group companies have faced, and could continue to face in
the upcoming months, an increase in their traditional credit, market, financial, operating and regulatory risks.
The specific impact will depend on future events, highlighting among them the rates of vaccination. In this
regard, after reaching high levels of vaccination among the Group’s employees (in Spain, the UK and the United
States of America), the businesses and corporate functions in Iberdrola have implemented a progressive
relaxation of the operational limitations established as a consequence of COVID-19.

The Group continues to monitor the potential impact of COVID-19 on its operations, pension plans and credit
condition of its counterparties. For further information about COVID-19 in 2020 please refer to Note 7 and
section 2 of the consolidated directors’ report of the audited consolidated annual accounts of the Guarantor for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Risks related to the structure of the Securities

The Issuer’s obligations under the Securities and the Coupons are subordinated

The Issuer’s obligations under the Securities will be unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Issuer and
will rank junior to the claims of unsubordinated and other subordinated creditors of the Issuer, except for
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subordinated creditors whose claims are expressed to rank pari passu with, or junior to, the Securities. See
Condition 2. By virtue of such subordination, payments to a Holder of Securities will, in the event of the Issuer
being declared in insolvency (concurso) under the Spanish Insolvency Law (as defined below), only be made
after, and any set-off by a Holder of Securities shall be excluded until, all obligations of the Issuer resulting
from higher ranking claims have been satisfied. A Holder of Securities may therefore recover less than the
holders of unsubordinated or other subordinated liabilities of the Issuer. Subject to applicable law, no Holder
may exercise or claim any right of set-off in respect of any amount owed to it by the Issuer arising under or in
connection with the Securities and each Holder shall, by virtue of being the Holder of any Security, be deemed
to have waived all such rights of set-off. Although subordinated debt securities may pay a higher rate of interest
than comparable debt securities which are not subordinated, there is a real risk that an investor in subordinated
securities such as the Securities will lose all or some of his investment should the Issuer become insolvent.

The Guarantee is a subordinated obligation

The Guarantor’s obligations under the Guarantee will be unsecured and subordinated obligations of the
Guarantor. In the event of the Guarantor being declared in insolvency (“concurso”) under the Spanish
Insolvency Law (as defined below), the Guarantor’s obligations under the Guarantee will be subordinated in
right of payment to the prior payment in full of all other liabilities of the Guarantor, except for obligations which
rank equally with or junior to the Guarantee. See Condition 3.

Holders of the Securities are advised that unsubordinated liabilities of the Guarantor may also arise out of events
that are not reflected on the balance sheet of the Guarantor including, without limitation, the issuance of
guarantees on an unsubordinated basis. Claims made under such guarantees will become generally
unsubordinated liabilities of the Guarantor that in the insolvency of the Guarantor will need to be paid in full
before the obligations under the Guarantee may be satisfied.

There are no events of default or cross default under the Securities

The Conditions do not provide for events of default or cross default allowing acceleration of the Securities if
certain events occur. Accordingly, if the Issuer or the Guarantor fails to meet any obligations under the Securities
or the Guarantee, as the case may be, including the payment of any interest, investors will not have the right to
require the early redemption of principal. Upon a payment default, the sole remedy available to the Holders for
recovery of amounts owing in respect of any payment of principal or interest on the Securities will be the
institution of proceedings to enforce such payment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the Issuer
or the Guarantor, by virtue of the institution of any such proceedings, be obliged to pay any sum or sums sooner
than the same would otherwise have been payable by it.

The Securities are undated securities

The Securities are undated securities, with no specified maturity date. The Issuer is under no obligation to
redeem or repurchase the Securities at any time and the Holders have no right to require redemption of the
Securities. Therefore, prospective investors should be aware that they may be required to bear the financial risks
of an investment in the Securities for an indefinite period of time and may not recover their investment in the
foreseeable future.

The Issuer may redeem the Securities under certain circumstances

Holders should be aware that the Securities may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer in whole, but not in
part, at the Make-whole Redemption Amount (as defined in the “Conditions™) on any date other than during the
period from and including 16 August 2027 and ending on (and including) the First Reset Date (as defined in
the “Conditions”) or on any Interest Payment Date (as defined in the “Conditions”) thereafter. The Securities
may also be redeemed at their principal amount (plus any accrued and outstanding interest and any outstanding
Aurrears of Interest) on any date during the period commencing on (and including) 16 August 2027 and ending
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on (and including) the First Reset Date (as defined in the “Conditions”) and on any Interest Payment Date (as
defined in the “Conditions”) thereafter.

The redemption at the option of the Issuer may affect the market value of the Securities. During any period
when the Issuer may elect to redeem or is perceived to be able to redeem the Securities, the market value of the
Securities generally will not rise substantially above the price at which they can be redeemed.

The Issuer may be expected to redeem the Securities when its cost of borrowing is lower than the interest rate
on the Securities. At those times, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds
at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Securities being redeemed and may only be able
to do so at a significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other
investments available at that time.

The Securities are also subject to redemption in whole, but not in part, at the Issuer’s option upon the occurrence
of an Accounting Event, a Capital Event, a Change of Control Event, a Tax Event, a Withholding Tax Event or
a Substantial Purchase Event (each as defined in Condition 19 of the “Conditions”). The relevant redemption
amount may be less than the then current market value of the Securities.

The Issuer might not be able to redeem the Securities after a Change of Control Event

At or around the Issue Date, the Guarantor intends to undertake to holders of certain of its securities
(“Qualifying Securities™) that following the occurrence of a Change of Control Event in respect of which the
Issuer intends to deliver a notice exercising its right to redeem the Securities under Condition 6(f), it will do so
only after making a tender offer, directly or indirectly, to all holders of Qualifying Securities to repurchase the
Qualifying Securities at their respective aggregate nominal amounts together with any interest accrued until the
day of completion of the repurchase. As a consequence, Holders should be aware that there may not be sufficient
funds to redeem the Securities after the repurchase of Qualifying Securities.

The Issuer may redeem the Securities after a Tax Event relating to an intra-group loan

The net proceeds of the issue of the Securities will be on-lent by the Issuer to Iberdrola Financiacién, S.A.U.
(“Iberdrola Financiacion”) pursuant to a Subordinated Loan (as defined in the Conditions).

The Issuer may redeem the Securities in certain circumstances, including if, as a result of a Tax Law Change
(as defined in the Conditions), in respect of (i) the Issuer’s obligation to make any payment under the Securities
(including any Interest Payment) on the next following Interest Payment Date; or (ii) the obligation of Iberdrola
Financiacion to make any payment in favour of the Issuer under the Subordinated Loan on the next following
due date for such payment, the Issuer or Iberdrola Financiacion (as the case may be) would no longer be entitled
to claim a deduction in respect of computing its tax liabilities in the Kingdom of Spain, or such entitlement is
materially reduced.

The direct connection between a Tax Event and the Subordinated Loan may limit the Issuer’s ability to prevent
the occurrence of a Tax Event, and may increase the possibility of the Issuer exercising its option to redeem the
Securities upon the occurrence thereof.

The current IFRS-EU accounting classification of financial instruments such as the Securities as equity
instruments may change, which may result in the occurrence of an Accounting Event

In June 2018, the IASB (International Accounting Standards Board) published the discussion paper DP/2018/1
on “Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Equity” (the “DP/2018/1 Paper™). If the proposals set out in
the DP/2018/1 Paper are implemented in their current form, the current IFRS-EU accounting classification of
financial instruments such as the Securities as equity instruments may change and this may result in the
occurrence of an Accounting Event. In such an event, the Issuer may have the option to redeem, in whole but
not in part, the Securities pursuant to Condition 6(d). The implementation of any of the proposals set out in the
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DP/2018/1 Paper or any other similar such proposals that may be made in the future, including the extent and
timing of any such implementation, if at all, is uncertain. Accordingly, no assurance can be given as to the future
classification of the Securities from an accounting perspective or whether any such change may result in the
occurrence of an Accounting Event, thereby providing the Issuer with the option to redeem the Securities
pursuant to the Conditions. The period during which the Issuer may notify the redemption of the Securities as
a result of the occurrence of an Accounting Event shall start on and include the Accounting Event Adoption
Date, which is the earlier of such date that a change is officially announced in respect of IFRS-EU or officially
adopted or put into practice.

The Issuer has the right to defer interest payments on the Securities

The Issuer may, at its discretion, elect to defer (in whole or in part) any payment of interest on the Securities.
Any such deferral of interest payment shall not constitute a default for any purpose. See Condition 5 of the
“Conditions”. Any interest in respect of the Securities the payment of which is deferred will, so long as the
same remains outstanding, constitute Arrears of Interest (as defined in the Conditions). Arrears of Interest will
be payable as outlined in Conditions 5(b) and 5(c).

While the deferral of payment of interest continues, the Issuer is not prohibited from making payments on any
instrument ranking senior to the Securities, as well as in other circumstances outlined in Condition 5(c), and in
such event, the Holders are not entitled to claim immediate payment of interest so deferred.

As a result of the interest deferral provision of the Securities, the market price of the Securities may be more
volatile than the market prices of other debt securities on which original issue discount or interest payments are
not subject to such deferrals and may be more sensitive generally to adverse changes in the Issuer’s and/or the
Guarantor’s financial condition. Investors should be aware that any deferral of interest payments or any
perceived increase in the likelihood thereof may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Securities.

Substitution or variation of the Securities

There is a risk that, after the issue of the Securities, a Tax Event, a Withholding Tax Event, an Accounting Event
or a Capital Event may occur which would entitle the Issuer and/or the Guarantor, without any requirement for
the consent or approval of the Holders, to substitute or vary the Securities (including the substitution of the
Securities for securities issued by a wholly-owned finance subsidiary of the Guarantor resident in a tax
jurisdiction other than the Kingdom of Spain), subject to certain conditions intended to protect the interests of
the Holders, so that after such substitution or variation the Securities remain or become, as the case may be,
eligible for the same or (from the perspective of the Issuer or the Guarantor) more favourable tax, accounting
or ratings treatment than the treatment to which they were entitled prior to the relevant event occurring. While
such substitution or variation of the Securities is subject to certain conditions intended to protect the interests
of the Holders (as a class) there can be no assurance that such substitution or variation will not have an adverse
impact on the price of, and/or the market for, the Securities or the circumstances of individual Holders.

Further, prior to the making of any such substitution or variation, the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Fiscal Agent
shall not be obliged to have regard to the tax position of individual Holders or to the tax consequences of any
such substitution or variation for individual Holders. No Holder shall be entitled to claim, whether from the
Fiscal Agent, the Issuer, the Guarantor, or any other person, any indemnification or payment in respect of any
tax consequence of any such substitution or variation upon individual Holders. Any such substitution or
variation may have an adverse impact on the price of, and/or the market for, the Securities.

No limitation on issuing senior or pari passu securities or other liabilities

There is no restriction on the amount of securities or other liabilities which the Issuer or the Guarantor may
issue, incur or guarantee and which rank senior to, or pari passu with, the Securities or the Guarantee (as the
case may be). The issue of any such securities, the granting of any such guarantees or the incurrence of any
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such other liabilities may reduce the amount (if any) recoverable by Holders on the insolvency, winding-up,
liquidation or dissolution of the Issuer or the Guarantor (as the case may be) and/or may increase the likelihood
of a deferral of Interest Payments under the Securities.

If the Issuer’s and/or the Guarantor’s financial condition were to deteriorate, the Holders could suffer direct and
materially adverse consequences, including loss of interest and, if the Issuer and/or the Guarantor were
liquidated (whether voluntarily or not), the Holders could suffer loss of their entire investment.

Fixed rate securities have a market risk

A holder of a security with a fixed interest rate is exposed to the risk that the price of such security falls as a
result of changes in the current interest rate on the capital market (the “Market Interest Rate”). While the
nominal interest rate of a security with a fixed interest rate is fixed during the life of such security or during a
certain period of time, the Market Interest Rate typically changes on a daily basis. A change of the Market
Interest Rate causes the price of such security to change. If the Market Interest Rate increases, the price of such
security typically falls. If the Market Interest Rate falls, the price of a security with a fixed interest rate typically
increases. Investors should be aware that movements of the Market Interest Rate can adversely affect the price
of the Securities and can lead to losses for the Holders if they sell the Securities.

Interest rate reset may result in a decline of yield

A Holder with a fixed interest rate that will be reset during the term of the Securities (as will be the case for the
Securities on each Reset Date if not previously redeemed) is exposed to the risk of fluctuating interest rate
levels and uncertain interest income. Fluctuating interest rate levels make it impossible to determine the yield
of such securities in advance.

Any decline in the credit ratings of the Issuer and/or the Guarantor may affect the market value of the Securities
The Securities have been assigned a rating by S&P, Moody’s and Fitch. The rating granted by each of S&P,
Moody’s and Fitch or any other rating assigned to the Securities may not reflect the potential impact of all risks
related to structure, market and other factors that may affect the value of the Securities. A credit rating is not a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be revised or withdrawn by the rating agency at any
time. A credit rating is not a statement as to the likelihood of deferral of interest on the Securities. Holders have
a greater risk of deferral of interest payments than persons holding other securities with similar credit ratings
but no, or more limited, interest deferral provisions.

In addition, each of S&P, Moody’s and Fitch, or any other rating agency may change its methodologies for
rating securities with features similar to the Securities in the future. This may include the relationship between
ratings assigned to an issuer’s senior securities and ratings assigned to securities with features similar to the
Securities sometimes called “notching”. If the rating agencies were to change their practices for rating such
securities in the future and the ratings of the Securities were to be subsequently lowered, this may have a
negative impact on the trading price of the Securities.

Changes in rating methodologies may lead to the early redemption of the Securities

S&P, Moody’s and Fitch (in each case as defined in the Conditions) may change their rating methodology or
may apply a different set of criteria after the Issue Date (due to changes in the rating previously assigned to the
Issuer and/or the Guarantor or to any other reasons), and as a result (i) the Securities may no longer be eligible
(or if the Securities have been partially or fully refinanced since the Issue Date and are no longer eligible for
“equity credit” from such rating agency in part or in full as a result, all or any of the Securities that would no
longer have been eligible as a result of an amendment, clarification, change in hybrid capital methodology or
change in the interpretation had they not been refinanced) for the same or a higher amount of “equity credit”
attributable to the Securities at the date of their issue or (ii) the length of time the Securities are assigned a
particular level of “equity credit” would be shortened as compared to the length of time they would have been
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assigned that level of “equity credit” on the initial issuance of the Securities, in which case the Issuer may
redeem all of the Securities (but not some only), as provided in Condition 6(e).

Credit ratings in the EEA and UK must meet the requirements specified in the CRA Regulation and UK CRA
Regulation

In general, European regulated institutions are restricted from using credit ratings for regulatory purposes in the
EEA under the CRA Regulation, unless such ratings are issued by a credit rating agency established in the EEA
and registered under the CRA Regulation (and such registration has not been withdrawn or suspended), subject
to transitional provisions that apply in certain circumstances whilst the registration application is pending. Such
general restriction will also apply in the case of credit ratings issued by third country non-EEA credit rating
agencies, unless the relevant credit ratings are endorsed by an EEA registered credit rating agency or the relevant
third country rating agency is certified in accordance with the CRA Regulation (and such endorsement action
or certification, as the case may be, has not been withdrawn or suspended, subject to transitional provisions that
apply in certain circumstances).

Investors regulated in the UK are subject to similar restrictions under the UK CRA Regulation. As such, UK
regulated investors are required to use for UK regulatory purposes ratings issued by a credit rating agency
established in the UK and registered under the UK CRA Regulation. In the case of ratings issued by third
country non-UK credit rating agencies, third country credit ratings can either be: (a) endorsed by a UK
registered credit rating agency; or (b) issued by a third country credit rating agency that is certified in accordance
with the UK CRA Regulation. Note this is subject, in each case, to (a) the relevant UK registration, certification
or endorsement, as the case may be, not having been withdrawn or suspended, and (b) transitional provisions
that apply in certain circumstances. In the case of third country ratings, for a certain limited period of time,
transitional relief accommodates continued use for regulatory purposes in the UK, of existing pre- 2021 ratings,
provided the relevant conditions are satisfied.

EU Insolvency

From 26 June 2017, the new Regulation 2015/848, of the European Parliament and of the Council, of 20 May
2015, on insolvency proceedings (recast) (as amended, “Regulation 2015/848™) is applicable to all Member
States of the EU (in this section references to Member States relate to member states of the European Union
excluding Denmark). This means that this regulation is applicable to all those insolvency proceedings that are
initiated in a Member State, when the centre of main interest (“COMI”) of the debtor is located in such countries.

Pursuant to Article 3(1) of the Regulation 2015/848 the COMI of a company is presumed to be in the Member
State in which it has its registered office in the absence of proof to the contrary. This presumption only applies
if the registered office has not been moved to another Member State within the three month period prior to the
request for the opening of insolvency proceedings. Furthermore, preamble 30 of Regulation 2015/848 states
that “it should be possible to rebut this presumption where the company’s central administration is located in a
Member State other than that of its registered office, and where a comprehensive assessment of all the relevant
factors establishes, in a manner that is ascertainable by third parties, that the company’s actual centre of
management and supervision and of the management of its interests is located in that other Member State.” In
that assessment factors such as where board meetings are held, the location where the company conducts the
majority of its business or has its head office and the location where the majority of the company’s creditors are
established may all be relevant. A debtor’s COMI is not a static concept and may change from time to time but
is determined for the purposes of deciding which courts have competent jurisdiction to commence insolvency
proceedings at the time of the filing of the insolvency petition.

If the COMI of a debtor is and will remain located in the state in which it has its registered office, the main
insolvency proceedings in respect of the debtor under Regulation 2015/848 would be commenced in such
jurisdiction and accordingly a court in such jurisdiction would be entitled to commence the types of insolvency
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proceedings referred to in Annex A to Regulation 2015/848. Insolvency proceedings commenced in one
Member State under Regulation 2015/848 are to be recognized in the other Member States, although territorial
(secondary) insolvency proceedings may be commenced in another Member State.

If the COMI of a debtor is in one Member State under Article 3(2) of Regulation 2015/848, the courts of another
Member State have jurisdiction to commence territorial (secondary) insolvency proceedings against that debtor
only if such debtor has an “establishment” in the territory of such other Member State. An “establishment”
(within the meaning and as defined in Article 2(10) of Regulation 2015/848) is defined as any place of
operations where a debtor carries out or has carried out in the three-month period prior to the request to open
main insolvency proceedings a non-transitory economic activity with human means and assets. Accordingly,
the opening of territorial (secondary) insolvency proceedings in another Member State will also be possible if
the debtor had an establishment in such Member State in the three-month period prior to the request for
commencement of main insolvency proceedings. The effects of those insolvency proceedings opened in that
other Member State are restricted to the assets of the company situated in such other Member State.

Where main proceedings have been opened in the Member State in which the debtor has its COMI, any
proceedings opened subsequently in another Member State in which the company has an establishment shall be
secondary proceedings. Where main proceedings in the Member State in which the debtor has its COMI have
not yet been opened, territorial insolvency proceedings can be opened in another Member State where the debtor
has an establishment only where either: (a) insolvency proceedings cannot be opened in the Member State in
which the debtor’s COMI is situated under that Member State’s law; or (b) the opening of territorial insolvency
proceedings is requested by:

(i) a creditor whose claim arises from or is in connection with the operation of an establishment situated
within the territory of the Member State where the opening of territorial proceedings is requested; or

(i)  a public authority which, under the law of the Member State within the territory of which the
establishment is situated, has the right to request the opening of insolvency proceedings.

Irrespective of whether the insolvency proceedings are main or secondary insolvency proceedings, such
proceedings will, subject to certain exceptions, be governed by the lex fori concursus, i.e., the local insolvency
law of the court that has assumed jurisdiction over the insolvency proceedings of the debtor.

Any judgment opening insolvency proceedings handed down by a court of a Member State which has
jurisdiction pursuant to Article 3 shall be recognised in all other Member States from the moment that it becomes
effective in the Member State of the opening of proceedings. This shall also apply where, on account of a
debtor’s capacity, insolvency proceedings cannot be brought against that debtor in other Member States.

Recognition of a main proceedings shall not preclude the opening of a secondary proceeding. The insolvency
receiver appointed by a court in a Member State that has jurisdiction to open main proceedings (because the
debtor’s COMI is there) may exercise the powers conferred on it by the laws of that Member State in another
Member State (such as to remove assets of the debtor from that other Member State), subject to certain
limitations, so long as no insolvency proceedings have been opened in that other Member State or any
preservation measure taken to the contrary further to a request to open insolvency proceedings in that other
Member State where the company has assets. Regulation 2015/848 has created a treatment for groups of
companies experiencing difficulties by the commencement of group coordination proceedings and the
appointment of an insolvency practitioner in order to facilitate the effective administration of the insolvency
proceedings of the group members.

Effects of EU Directive 2019/1023 on Restructuring and Insolvency

On 16 July, 2019, the Directive (EU) 2019/1023 of the European Parliament and the Council of 20 June, 2019,
on preventive restructuring frameworks, on discharge of debt and disqualifications, and on measures to increase
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the efficiency of procedures concerning restructuring, insolvency and discharge of debt, and amending Directive
(EU) 2017/1132 (the “EU Restructuring Directive™) entered into force. The Member States were required to
pass national laws to implement the directive by 17 July 2021, at the latest.

The EU Restructuring Directive aims to harmonize the laws and procedures of Member States concerning
preventive restructurings and insolvencies, to put in place key principles for all Member States on effective
preventive restructuring and second chance frameworks, and measures to make all types of insolvency
procedures more efficient by reducing their length and associated costs and improving their quality. The key
feature of the EU Restructuring Directive is the introduction of a preventive restructuring framework. The EU
Restructuring Directive sets out minimum EU standards to be applied by the Member States (i.e., minimum
harmonization). Whereas certain features of the EU Restructuring Directive need to be transposed into national
legislation, the EU Restructuring Directive leaves a large degree of discretion regarding the implementation of
certain other features. In particular, when implementing the EU Restructuring Directive, Member States must
ensure that, under their national laws, companies will have access to a pre-insolvency restructuring framework
which permits a haircut of debt and other restructuring measures on the basis of a majority vote with a majority
of not more than 75% of the amount of claims in each class and where applicable a majority by numbers
(meaning, for instance, that an opposing creditor can be outvoted by the majority). The EU Restructuring
Directive also provides for cross-class cramdown, i.e., even if the creditors of one class voting on the
restructuring plan did not consent to the restructuring plan with the required majority, the restructuring plan
might still be adopted and take effect for the dissenting creditors. Further, the EU Restructuring Directive
provides for a stay on enforcement, which needs to be transposed into national legislation.

The implementation of the EU Restructuring Directive into national legislation might also include priority
ranking for new financing. Although the EU Restructuring Directive also foresees a number of safeguards
protecting creditors from abuse and although it is not clear how exactly the EU Restructuring Directive will be
implemented in individual Member States, the current domestic insolvency law of some Member States may
change substantially if they lack any of the mechanisms that the EU Restructuring Directive will make
mandatory. This might have considerable repercussions for the position of creditors of a Member State legal
entity. The description of the current Member State domestic insolvency regimes must, therefore, be read with
the understanding that they might change substantially.

Risks arising in connection with the Spanish Insolvency Law

Subordination of the claims of the Holders under the Guarantee as a result of a contractual subordination

The consolidated text of the Spanish Insolvency Law, approved by Royal Decree 1/2020 of 5 May 2020 (the
“Spanish Insolvency Law™) regulates court insolvency proceedings, as opposed to out-of-court liquidation,
which is only available when the debtor has sufficient assets to meet its liabilities, as from September 1, 2020.

In addition, as a result of the COVID-19 health crisis, the Spanish Government approved various extraordinary
resolutions including, among others, Royal Decree Law 34/2020 (Real Decreto-ley 34/2020, de 17 de
noviembre, de medidas urgentes de apoyo a la solvencia empresarial y al sector energético, y en materia
tributaria) or Act 3/2020 (Ley 3/2020, de 18 de septiembre, de medidas procesales y organizativas para hacer
frente al COVID-19 en el ambito de la Administracion de Justicia) (“Act 3/2020”). These resolutions introduced
several temporary and extraordinary measures that impact pre-insolvency and insolvency proceedings.

The insolvency proceedings, which are called “concurso de acreedores” are applicable to all persons or entities.
These proceedings may lead either to the restructuring of the business (for example the sale of a business unit
or the restructuring of the debt) or to the liquidation of the assets of the debtor.

A debtor (and in the case of a company, its directors) is required to apply for insolvency proceedings when it is
not able to meet its current obligations within the term of two months as from the moment that it knows that it
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is insolvent or as from the moment it should have known it is insolvent. The debtor is also entitled to apply for
such insolvency proceedings when it expects that it will shortly be unable to do so. Insolvency proceedings are
available as a type of legal protection that the debtor may request in order to avoid the attachment of its assets
by its creditors. Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to article 6.1 of Act 3/2020, until 31 December 2021
(inclusive) debtors that are insolvent will not have the duty to file for insolvency proceedings, whether or not
they have notified the judge that negotiations have been opened with creditors to reach a refinancing agreement,
to reach an out-of-court payment agreement (acuerdo extrajudicial de pagos) or acceptances of a company
voluntary arrangement (propuesta anticipada de convenio). Moreover, pursuant to article 6.2 of Act 3/2020,
until 31 December 2021 (inclusive) the courts will not accept mandatory insolvency filings (including those
filed since the state of emergency was declared on 14 March 2020). However, if a debtor voluntarily files for
insolvency on or before 31 December 2021, this petition will be processed as a priority even if it comes after
creditors petition for mandatory insolvency proceedings.

Creditors will not be able to accelerate the maturity of their credits based only in the declaration of the
insolvency (declaracion de concurso) of the debtor. Any provision to the contrary will be null and void.

The insolvency order contains an express request for the creditors to file their claims, within a one-month period
as from the day after the publication of the insolvency proceeding in the Spanish Official Gazzette (Boletin
Oficial del Estado), providing documentation to justify such credits. Based on the documentation provided by
the creditors and that is held by the debtor, insolvency administration (administrador concursal) draw up an
inventory and a list of acknowledged creditors and classify them according to the categories established under
law: (i) post-insolvency debts (créditos contra la masa), (ii) secured claims, (iii) general preferential claims,
(iv) ordinary claims / unsecured claims and (v) subordinated claims:

. Post-insolvency debts are not considered part of the debtor’s general debt and are payable when due
according to their own terms (and, therefore, are paid before other debts under insolvency proceedings).
Post-insolvency debts include, among others, (i) certain amounts of the employee payroll, (ii) costs and
expenses of the insolvency proceedings, (iii) certain amounts arising from services provided by the
insolvent debtor under reciprocal contracts and outstanding obligations that remain in force after
insolvency proceedings are declared and deriving from obligations to return and indemnify in cases of
voluntary termination or breach by the insolvent debtor, (iv) those that derive from the exercise of a
clawback action within the insolvency proceedings of acts performed by the insolvent debtor and
correspond to a refund of consideration received by it (except in cases of bad faith), (v) certain amounts
arising from obligations created by law or from the non-contractual liability of the insolvent debtor after
the declaration of insolvency and until its conclusion, (vi) 50 per cent. of the funds lent under refinancing
arrangements entered into in compliance with certain requirements set forth in the Spanish Insolvency
Law and (vii) certain debts incurred by the debtor following the declaration of insolvency.

. Secured claims, representing attachments on certain assets (basically in rem security), up to the value,
calculated in accordance with the law, of the security guaranteeing them. These privileges may entail
separate proceedings, though subject to certain restrictions derived from a waiting period that may last
up to one year. However, within such waiting period or while any enforcement proceedings remain
suspended under the Spanish Insolvency Law, the insolvency administrators shall have the option to pay
the relevant post-insolvency debts under specific payment rules. Privileged creditors are not bound by a
creditors arrangement, except if they give their express support by voting in favour of the arrangement
or, even if they dissent or abstain from voting, if the applicable majority (which depends on the content
of the arrangement) of the relevant class of the privileged creditors vote in favour of the arrangement. In
the event of liquidation, they shall be the first to collect payment against the attached assets.
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. General preferential claims, including among others certain labour debts and certain debts with public
administrations. Other debts with public administrations corresponding to tax debts and social security
obligations are recognised as privileged for half their amount, and debts held by the creditor applying
for the corresponding insolvency proceedings, other than subordinated debts, to the extent such
application has been approved, up to a 50 per cent. of the amount of such debt. Funds under a refinancing
arrangement entered into in compliance with certain requirements set forth in the Spanish Insolvency
Law in the amount not admitted as post-insolvency debts will also be general preferential claims. The
holders of general preferential claims are not to be affected by the restructuring except if they do give
their express support by voting in favour of the arrangement or, even if they dissent or abstain from
voting, if the applicable majority (which depends on the content of the arrangement) of the relevant class
of the privileged creditors vote in favour of the arrangement. In the event of liquidation, they are the first
to collect payment, in the order established under law.

. Ordinary claims / unsecured claims (non-subordinated and non-privileged creditors). They will be paid
on a pro-rata basis.

. Subordinated claims (thus classified by virtue of law). Subordinated debts include, among others, profit
participating loans and those debts held by parties in special relationships with the debtor: in the case of
an individual, his/her relatives; in the case of a legal entity, the directors, the liquidators, the proxies with
general powers and any shareholders holding, directly or indirectly, more than 5 per cent. (for companies
which have issued securities listed on an official secondary market) or 10 per cent. (for companies which
have not issued securities listed on an official secondary market) of the share capital and companies
pertaining to the same group as the debtor and their common shareholders, provided that such
shareholders meet the minimum shareholding requirements set forth before. Likewise, credits which
have been contractually subordinated (as the Securities or the Guarantee) are classified as subordinated
credits.

Exceptionally, Article 7 of Act 3/2020 establishes that (i) credits deriving from “cash receipts from loans,
credits or other analogous transactions” granted to the debtor “as from the declaration of the state of
emergency” by a person in special relationship with the debtor; and (ii) third party credits to which
parties in special relationships with the debtor have subrogated as a result of the payment by such party
of any ordinary or privileged credit; will rank as ordinary claims if the insolvency proceeding is opened
during the two years following the declaration of the state of emergency in Spain (i.e., before 14 March
2022).

As a general rule, insolvency proceedings are not compatible with other enforcement proceedings. When
compatible, in order to protect the interests of the debtor and creditors, the law extends the jurisdiction of the
court dealing with insolvency proceedings, which is, then, legally authorised to handle any enforcement
proceedings or interim measures affecting the debtor’s assets (whether based upon civil, labour or
administrative law).

Creditors holding security in rem, that had been traditionally allowed to enforce their debts against the secured
asset notwithstanding the initiation of insolvency proceedings, are also generally subject to certain restrictions
in order to initiate separate enforcement proceedings (or to continue with such proceedings, if they were being
carried out), and if the secured asset is deemed to be necessary for the debtor’s activities, enforcement cannot
be carried out outside the insolvency proceedings. In summary, enforcement by the creditor is subject to a delay
of a maximum of one year if such asset is deemed to be necessary for the debtors activities in which case
enforcement cannot be carried out outside the insolvency proceedings.

There are no prior transactions that automatically become void as a result of initiation of the insolvency
proceedings. The insolvency administration may only challenge those transactions that could be deemed as
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being “detrimental” to the debtor’s interests, provided that they have taken place within two years prior to the
declaration of insolvency (transactions taking place earlier than two years before insolvency has been declared
are subject to the general regime of rescission in accordance with Article 238 of the Spanish Insolvency Law).
Those transactions that are executed in the ordinary course of business, according to the business of the debtor,
are not subject to challenge.

“Detrimental” does not refer to the intention of the parties, but to the consequences of the transaction on the
debtor’s interests. In any case, the law refers to transactions that are somehow exceptional: it is considered
detrimental (as a non-rebuttable presumption) in the case of donations and early payment of unsecured
obligations maturing after the insolvency declaration and detrimental is deemed to be (as a rebuttable
presumption) in the case of transactions entered into with special related persons and the creation of rights in
rem in order to secure existing obligations or those incurred to replace existing obligations and the cancellation
of obligations secured by an in rem security interest falling due after the declaration of Insolvency; in the
remaining cases, damage would have to be justified.

The agreements in relation to the Securities could be challenged only if those transactions were deemed to have
cause damage, as explained above.

Holders should be aware (i) of the effects of a declaration of insolvency of the Issuer or the Guarantor set out
above, (ii) that their claims against the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, would therefore be
subordinated and (iii) subordinated creditors may not vote on an arrangement and have very limited chances of
collection, according to the ranking established by law.

Risks related to the Securities generally
Set out below is a brief description of certain risks relating to the Securities generally:

The Securities may not be a suitable investment for all investors

The Securities are complex financial instruments. Each potential investor in the Securities must determine the

suitability of that investment in light of such investor’s own circumstances and its own objectives and

experience and any other factors which may be relevant to it in connection with such investment, either alone

or with the help of a financial advisor. In particular, each potential investor should:

(i) be experienced with respect to transactions on capital markets and notes and understand the risks of
transactions involving the Securities;

(i) reach an investment decision only after careful consideration of the information set forth in this Offering
Circular and general information relating to the Securities;

(iii)  have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Securities, the merits
and risks of investing in the Securities and the information contained or incorporated by reference in this
Offering Circular;

(iv)  have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its particular
financial situation, an investment in the Securities and the impact such investment will have on its overall
investment portfolio;

(v)  have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the Securities;
(vi)  understand thoroughly the terms of the Securities;

(vii) be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for economic,
interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the relevant risks;
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(viii) make their own assessment of the legal, tax, accounting and regulatory aspects of purchasing the
Securities; and

(ix)  consult its legal advisers on legal, tax and related aspects of investment in the Securities.

Some potential investors are subject to restricting investment regulations. These potential investors should
consult their legal counsel in order to determine whether investment in the Securities is authorised by law,
whether such investment is compatible with their other borrowings or whether the Securities can be used as
collateral for any such borrowings and whether other selling restrictions are applicable to them.

Securities issued as “Green Bonds™ may not be a suitable investment for all investors seeking exposure to
green assets

Regardless of whether the Securities are listed or admitted to trading on any dedicated “green”,
“environmental”, “sustainable” or other equivalently-labelled segment of any stock exchange or securities
market, no assurance is given by the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Joint Bookrunners that the use of such proceeds
for any Eligible Green Projects (as defined under “Use of Proceeds” below) will satisfy, whether in whole or in
part, any present or future investor expectations or requirements as regards any investment criteria or guidelines
with which such investor or its investments are required to comply whether by any present or future applicable
law or regulations or by its own by-laws or other governing rules or investment portfolio mandates, in particular
with regard to any direct or indirect environmental, sustainability or social impact of any projects or uses, the
subject of or related to, any Eligible Green Projects. In addition, although the Issuer or the Guarantor agrees at
the time of issue of the Securities to apply the proceeds of the issue as specified in, or substantially in accordance
with, the eligibility criteria, it would not be an event of default under the Securities if the Issuer or the Guarantor
were to fail either to comply with such obligations or to meet any timing schedule for whatever reason.

In connection with the issue of the Securities, a sustainability consulting firm has been requested to issue a
second-party opinion confirming that the Eligible Green Projects have been defined in accordance with the
broad categorisation of eligibility for green projects set out by the International Capital Market Association
(ICMA) Green Bond Principles (GBP) and/or a second-party opinion regarding the suitability of the Securities
as an investment in connection with certain environmental and sustainability projects (such second-party
opinion, a “Second-party Opinion”). A Second-party Opinion may not reflect the potential impact of all risks
related to the structure, market, additional risk factors discussed above and other factors that may affect the
value of the Securities or the projects financed or refinanced toward an amount corresponding to the net
proceeds of the issue of the Securities. A Second-party Opinion would not constitute a recommendation to buy,
sell or hold securities and would only be current as of the date it is released. In addition, although the Guarantor
may agree at the time of issue of the Securities to certain reporting and use of proceeds (including in the case
of certain divestments described under “Use of Proceeds”) it would not be an event of default under the
Securities if the Guarantor were to fail to comply with such obligations. A withdrawal of the Second-party
Opinion may affect the value of the Securities and/or may have consequences for certain investors with portfolio
mandates to invest in green assets. Such Second-party Opinion is not incorporated in, and does not form part
of, this Offering Circular. No assurance is given that such Second-party Opinion correctly assesses the potential
environmental impact of the issue of the Securities or the Issuer or Guarantor generally. Such Second-party
Opinion generally is only current as of the date it is released and may be updated, suspended or withdrawn by
the relevant provider(s) at any time. Currently the providers of green evaluations are not subject to any specific
regulatory regime or other regime or oversight. Prospective investors must determine for themselves the
relevance of any Second-party Opinion for the purpose of any investment in the Securities. In particular, no
assurance or representation is made or given that any such Second-party Opinion reflects any present or future
requirements, investment criteria or guidelines which may apply to any investor or its investments.
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Any failure to apply the proceeds of the issue of the Securities in connection with Eligible Green Projects, or
any failure to meet, or continue to meet the eligibility criteria, or the withdrawal of any Second-Party Opinion
or the Securities no longer being listed or admitted to trading on any stock exchange or securities market may
have a material adverse effect on the value of the Securities or result in adverse consequences for certain
investors with portfolio mandates to invest in securities to be used for a particular purpose. Prospective investors
must determine for themselves whether the Securities meet their requisite investment criteria and conduct any
other investigations they deem necessary to reach their own conclusions as to the merits of investing in the
Securities.

Furthermore, it should be noted that there is currently no clear definition (legal, regulatory or otherwise) of, nor
market consensus as to what constitutes, a “green” or an equivalently-labelled project (including Regulation
(EU) 2020/852 on the establishment of a framework to facilitate sustainable investment (the so called EU
Taxonomy), the operative provisions of which are due to enter into force over the course of 2022 and 2023) or
as to what precise attributes are required for a particular project to be defined as “green” or such other equivalent
label nor can any assurance be given that such a clear definition or consensus will develop over time or that any
prevailing market consensus will not significantly change. Accordingly, no assurance is or can be given to
investors in the Securities that any projects or uses the subject of, or related to, any Eligible Green Projects will
meet any or all investor expectations regarding such “green” or other equivalently-labelled performance
objectives or that any adverse environmental, social and/or other impacts will not occur during the
implementation of any projects or uses the subject of, or related to, any Eligible Green Projects.

Majority decisions bind all Holders

The Conditions of the Securities contain provisions for calling meetings of Holders to consider matters affecting
their interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all Holders including Holders who
did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting and Holders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.

Change of law

The Conditions of the Securities are based on laws in effect as at the date of this Offering Circular. No assurance
can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial decision or change to relevant law or administrative
practice after the date of this Offering Circular.

There is no active trading market for the Securities

The Securities are new securities which may not be widely distributed and for which there is currently no active
trading market. If the Securities are traded after their initial issuance, they may trade at a discount to their initial
offering price, depending upon prevailing interest rates, the market for similar securities, general economic
conditions and the financial condition of the Issuer and the Guarantor. Although application has been made to
admit the Securities to the official list of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and to trading on the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange’s Euro MTF Market, there is no assurance that an active trading market will develop.
Accordingly, there is no assurance as to the development or liquidity of any trading market for the Securities.

The development or continued liquidity of any secondary market for the Securities will be affected by a number
of factors such as general economic conditions, the financial condition, the creditworthiness of the Issuer and/or
the Group, and the value of any applicable reference rate, as well as other factors such as the complexity and
volatility of the reference rate, the method of calculating the return to be paid in respect of such Securities, the
outstanding amount of the Securities, any redemption features of the Securities, the performance of other
instruments linked to the reference rates and the level, direction and volatility of interest rates generally. Such
factors also will affect the market value of the Securities. In addition, certain Securities may be designed for
specific investment objectives or strategies and therefore may have a more limited secondary market and
experience more price volatility than conventional debt securities.
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Investors may not be able to sell Securities readily or at prices that will enable investors to realise their
anticipated yield. No investor should purchase Securities unless the investor understands and is able to bear the
risk that certain Securities will not be readily sellable, that the value of Securities will fluctuate over time and
that such fluctuations will be significant.

Risks relating to withholding in respect of payments made by the Issuer and the Guarantor

The Issuer considers that, pursuant to the provisions of Foral Decree of the territory of Bizkaia 205/2008 and
Royal Decree 1065/2007, it is not obliged to withhold taxes in Spain on any interest paid under the Securities
to any Holders, irrespective of whether such Holder is tax resident in Spain or not. The foregoing is subject to
the fulfilment of the information procedure described in “Taxation” below.

In this regard, according to Foral Decree 205/2008 and Royal Decree 1065/2007, any interest paid by the Issuer
under securities that (i) can be regarded as listed debt securities issued under Law 10/2014 and (ii) are initially
registered at a foreign clearing and settlement entity that is recognised under Spanish regulations or under those
of another OECD member state, will be made free of Spanish withholding tax provided that the relevant paying
agent fulfils the information procedures described in “Taxation” below.

Accordingly, while the Securities are represented by one or more global notes, are admitted to trading on the
Euro MTF Market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, and deposited with a common depositary for Euroclear
and/or Clearstream, the Securities will meet the requirements referred to in (i) and (ii) above and, consequently,
payments made by the Issuer to Holders should be paid free of Spanish withholding tax (subject to the fulfilment
of the aforementioned information procedures).

Notwithstanding the above, with regard to Holders subject to Spanish Corporate Income Tax whose Securities
are deposited with a Spanish resident entity acting as depositary or custodian, withholding could be made by
such depositary or custodian if the Securities were considered as not compliant with the relevant exemption
requirements specified in the ruling issued by the Spanish Tax Authorities (Direccion General de Tributos) on
27 July 2004. According to said ruling, application of the withholding exemption requires that, in addition to
the Securities being traded in an organised market of an OECD country, they are placed outside Spain in another
OECD country. If it was determined that such withholding exemption does not apply on the basis that the
Securities were placed, totally or partially, in Spain, said depositaries or custodians could eventually make such
a withholding at the applicable rate, currently 19%.

In the event that the current applicable procedures were modified, amended or supplemented by, amongst others,
a Spanish law, regulation, interpretation or ruling of the Spanish Tax Authorities -including but not limited to
the Bizkaia Tax Administration-, the Issuer will inform the Holders of the new information procedures and of
their implications, as it might be required to apply withholding tax on interest payments under the Securities if
the Holders do not comply with such new information procedures.

Holders must seek their own advice to ensure that they comply with all procedures to ensure the correct tax
treatment of their Securities. None of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealers, or the Paying Agent assume any
responsibility thereof.

Because the Global Securities are held by or on behalf of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, investors
will have to rely on their procedures for transfer, payment and communication with the Issuer and/or the
Guarantor

The Securities will be represented by the Global Securities except in certain limited circumstances described in
the Permanent Global Security. The Global Securities will be deposited with a common depositary for Euroclear
and Clearstream, Luxembourg. Except in certain limited circumstances described in the Permanent Global
Security, investors will not be entitled to receive Definitive Securities. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg
will maintain records of the beneficial interests in the Global Securities. While the Securities are represented

42



by the Global Securities, investors will be able to trade their beneficial interests only through Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg.

The Issuer and the Guarantor will discharge their payment obligations under the Securities by making payments
to or to the order of the common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg for distribution to their
account holders. A holder of a beneficial interest in a Global Security must rely on the procedures of Euroclear
and Clearstream, Luxembourg to receive payments under the Securities. The Issuer and the Guarantor have no
responsibility or liability for the records relating to, or payments made in respect of, beneficial interests in the
Global Securities.

Holders of beneficial interests in the Global Securities will not have a direct right to vote in respect of the
Securities. Instead, such holders will be permitted to act only to the extent that they are enabled by Euroclear
and Clearstream, Luxembourg to appoint appropriate proxies.

Exchange rate risks and exchange controls

The Issuer will pay principal and interest on the Securities, and the Guarantor will make any payments under
the Guarantee, in euro. This presents certain risks relating to currency conversions if an investor’s financial
activities are denominated principally in a currency or currency unit (the “Investor’s Currency”) other than euro.
These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly change (including changes due to devaluation of
the euro or revaluation of the Investor’s Currency) and the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over the
Investor’s Currency may impose or modify exchange controls. An appreciation in the value of the Investor’s
Currency relative to euros would decrease (a) the Investor’s Currency-equivalent yield on the Securities, (b)
the Investor’s Currency equivalent value of the principal payable on the Securities and (c) the Investor’s
Currency equivalent market value of the Securities.

Government and monetary authorities may impose (as some have done in the past) exchange controls that could
adversely affect an applicable exchange rate. As a result, investors may receive less interest or principal than
expected, or no interest or principal.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to investment laws and regulations, or review or
regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal advisers to determine whether
and to what extent (a) the Securities are legal investments for it, (b) the Securities can be used as collateral for
various types of borrowing and (c) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of the Securities. Financial
institutions should consult their legal advisers or the appropriate regulators to determine the appropriate
treatment of the Securities under any applicable risk-based capital or similar rules.

Regulation and reform of benchmarks

The determination of the Subsequent Fixed Interest Rate in respect of the Securities is dependent upon the
relevant 6-month EURIBOR administered by the EMMI at the relevant time (as specified in the Conditions)
and the 5 Year Swap Rate appearing on the Reuters Screen Page "ICESWAP2/EURSFIXA" provided by the
IBA.

EURIBOR and other interest rate or other types of rates and indices which are deemed to be benchmarks
(“benchmarks”) are the subject of ongoing national and international regulatory reform.

The EEA BMR and Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 as it forms part of English law by virtue of the EUWA (the UK
Benchmark Regulation) apply to the provision of benchmarks, the contribution of input data to a benchmark
and the use of a benchmark within the EU and the UK, respectively. On 21 September 2017, the European
Central Bank announced that it would be part of a new working group tasked with the identification and
adoption of a "risk-free overnight rate™ which can serve as a basis for an alternative to current benchmarks used
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in a variety of financial instruments and contracts in the euro area. On 13 September 2018, the working group
on Euro risk-free rates recommended the €STR as the new risk-free rate for the euro area. The €STR was
published for the first time on 2 October 2019. Although EURIBOR has been reformed in order to comply with
the terms of the EEA BMR, it remains uncertain as to how long it will continue in its current form, or whether
it will be further reformed or replaced with €STR or an alternative benchmark.

Following the implementation of any such potential reforms, the manner of administration of benchmarks may
change, with the result that they may perform differently than in the past, or benchmarks could be eliminated
entirely, or there could be other consequences which cannot be predicted. Any such consequence could affect
the manner in which interest determinations are required to be made pursuant to the Conditions and have a
material adverse effect on the value of and return on the Securities. If the Issuer determines that a Benchmark
Event (as defined in the Conditions) has occurred, then an Independent Adviser may set the rate of interest
(without a requirement for the consent or approval of the Holders), by reference to a successor rate or an
alternative reference rate and that successor rate or alternative reference rate may be adjusted (if required). The
use of a successor rate or an alternative reference rate may, however, result in interest payments that are lower
than, or otherwise do not correlate over time with, the payments that could have been made on the Securities if
the relevant benchmark continued to be available in its current form. Furthermore, if the Issuer is unable to
appoint an Independent Adviser or the Independent Adviser fails to determine a successor rate or an alternative
reference rate or any adjustments thereto in accordance with the Conditions, the ultimate fallback for a particular
Reset Period may result in the 5 Year Swap Rate for the next succeeding Reset Period being equal to the last
observable 5 year mid-swap rate for euro swap transactions on the Reset Screen Page. Any such consequence
could have a material adverse effect on the value of and return on the Securities.

Notwithstanding the fallback provisions relating to Benchmark Events discussed above, no Successor Rate or
Alternative Rate will be adopted, nor will the applicable Adjustment Spread be applied, nor will any Benchmark
Amendments be made, if and to the extent that, in the determination of the Issuer, the same could reasonably
be expected to (i) result in a reduction of the amount of “equity credit” assigned to the Securities by any Rating
Agency when compared to the “equity credit” assigned to the Securities immediately prior to the occurrence of
the relevant Benchmark Event from such Rating Agency or (ii) otherwise prejudice the eligibility of the
Securities for “equity credit” from any Rating Agency.

No consent of the Holders shall be required in connection with effecting any relevant successor rate or
alternative reference rate (as applicable) or any other related adjustments and/or amendments described above.
Any such adjustment could have unexpected commercial consequences and there can be no assurance that, due
to the particular circumstances of each Holder, any such adjustment will be favourable to each Holder.

Moreover, any of the above matters or any other significant change to the setting or existence of any relevant
reference rate could affect the ability of the Issuer to meet its obligations under the Securities or could have a
material adverse effect on the value or liquidity of, and the amount payable under the Securities. Investors
should consider these matters when making their investment decision with respect to the Securities.

Holders of the Securities will not benefit from certain rights of holders of debt securities under Spanish law.

In Spain, issuers of debt securities such as the Securities are generally required to have a syndicate of holders
(sindicato de obligacionistas) that is represented by a commissioner (comisario). According to Spanish law,
there will be neither a syndicate of holders nor a commissioner; furthermore, Spanish law would not apply in
respect of the rights of the holders vis-a-vis the Issuer. As a result, holders of Securities will not benefit from:
(i) any rights as a holder of Securities arising from Article 411 of the Spanish Capital Companies Law (Ley de
Sociedades de Capital); (ii) the constitution of a syndicate of holders; and (iii) the appointment of a
commissioner (with respect to (ii) and (iii), both as regulated by Article 419 et seq. of the Spanish Capital
Companies Law).
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Terms and Conditions of the Securities

The following are the terms and conditions substantially in the form in which they will be endorsed on the
Securities. Sentences in italics shall not form part of these terms and conditions.

The issue of the Securities was authorised by a resolution of the Board of Directors of Iberdrola Finanzas,
S.A.U. (the “Issuer”) passed on 4 November 2021, and the guarantee of the Securities was authorised by a
resolution of the Board of Directors of the Guarantor dated 26 October 2021 following the delegation of powers
approved by resolutions dated 18 June 2021 of the General Shareholders’ Meeting of the Guarantor under item
24 of the agenda. A fiscal agency agreement dated 16 November 2021 (the “Fiscal Agency Agreement”) has
been entered into in relation to the Securities between the Issuer, the Guarantor, The Bank of New York Mellon,
London Branch as fiscal agent and agent bank and the paying agents named in it. The fiscal agent, the agent
bank and the paying agents for the time being are referred to below respectively as the “Fiscal Agent”, the
“Agent Bank” and the “Paying Agents” (which expression shall include the Fiscal Agent). The Fiscal Agency
Agreement includes the form of the Securities and the coupons relating to them (the “Coupons”, which
expression includes, where the context so permits, talons for further coupons (the “Talons™)). Copies of the
Fiscal Agency Agreement are available for inspection during normal business hours at the specified offices of
the Paying Agents (at the discretion of the Paying Agents). The Holders of the Securities and the Holders of the
Coupons (each as defined in Condition 1(b) below) (whether or not attached to the relevant Securities) are
deemed to have notice of all the provisions of the Fiscal Agency Agreement applicable to them.

Form, Denomination and Title

(@  Form and denomination: The Securities are serially numbered and in bearer form in the denomination
of €100,000, each with Coupons attached on issue.

(b)  Title: Title to the Securities and Coupons passes by delivery. The holder of any Security or Coupon (a
“Holder”) will (except as otherwise required by law or as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction)
be treated as its absolute owner for all purposes (whether or not it is overdue and regardless of any notice
of ownership, trust or any interest in it, any writing on it, or its theft or loss) and no person will be liable
for so treating the Holder.

Status and Subordination of the Securities and Coupons

(@)  Status of the Securities and Coupons: The S